




2nd leaf - - expectations -

2^d - from the change
5-6 - for the visit to Mr. Vincent



Digitized by the Internet Archive
in 2010 with funding from
Duke University Libraries

<http://www.archive.org/details/diarynotebook01robe>

Handwritten text, likely bleed-through from the reverse side of the page. The text is extremely faint and illegible due to fading and low contrast. It appears to be a list or a series of entries, possibly containing names and dates, but the specific details cannot be discerned.

[Faint, illegible handwritten text, possibly bleed-through from the reverse side of the page.]

Oct: 39 My new novel Expectations.
A dreary night Mr & Mrs Jackson with three
Alec Bay of ten years of age arrive at a
village in the North - They have expected
him not to die when a thousand years will
be there Mr Jackson a thousand they quarrel
in smoothness ~~has with the~~ ~~the~~ his widow
begs a job for potatoes in the garden
and entries her - A Lawyer's letter of the death
of the Aunt - he wishes to buy the Cottage but
it is settled on the Man's son to educate
him till he is one & twenty - He goes to London
searches out Lucy Monvers - she does not
find her - sees a crowd of Harbours' Coach at
the door, and a Woman is brought out by
Constables & conveyed away - it was Lucy
he enters the house makes inquiry finds
that she is accused of Theft - She had taken
two rooms on the second floor to teach Music for
her support when the Lady from the dining Room
just starting for Brighton found she was
robbed. she had merely left her keys & a few
ornaments, but soon they were discovered placed there
from curiosity she returned he desk a Box of Jewels
was missing search was made and found in
Mrs Davenport's Box - and she was hurried
away to prison - now at last through Jackson
my money will be a blessing I will see her
goes to the Fair hears her story takes her

130.

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

1896
10.10.1892
A girl from the town gets her the best
advice - the trial comes on Lucy Downport
dreams she meets her husband - the Judge
proves to be such - the girl who was
found worn who had stole the jewels and
put them into her bed becomes delicious
confesses - the Judge learns the case - takes
Lucy home but does not live long
the Copyist was a man who follows
Jackson home - he is his Wifes Brother -
he goes into the Court for proof - his
son his only accuser - he is condemned to
death - Lucy now a widow goes to him
and takes his son home - the day
before the execution Jackson dies -
The child rem married

London

My dear Mr. ...

I have ...

...

...

the Court & otherwise. 3rd Jan 18

- indens for
- Dr Lady Bradford
- x Mrs Maudslayi
- + The Lyalls
- { Mrs Smith
- & Mrs Maudslayi
- x Miss Manning
- x Miss Meizer
- x Revd's Wyle
- x Mrs Wedge
- x John
- x My own copy
- x Lady Dring

- Wrote to
- x Lady Fisher
- x Miss Tully
- x Mrs Maudslayi
- + John Smith
- + Lady Smith
- + Mrs Wood
- + Mrs Leigh
- + Miss Fairies
- + Mrs Moran
- + Mrs Cartwright
- + Mrs J. Denne
- + Mrs Clarke

- Genl Wyndham
- Lord Cash
- Mrs de la Roche
- ~~Mr de la Roche~~
- Lady Thorne & Delhousie
- 12 Grosvenor Miss Leigh
- Mrs Poynter
- Lady Clarendon
- To Chambers Journal
- Library Bloomsbury

- x Miss Maudslayi
- Miss Sheridan
- Mrs Salmon
- Mrs Ori
- Mrs Genl Wood
- x Col. Jarvis
- x Mrs Pratt
- x Mrs Macnamara
- x Col. Wyndham
- Miss Shinght
- x Mrs Farmer
- x Mrs Bourne
- Mrs Greenford
- Dr Mitchell
- x Miss Lowell
- x Miss Cameron

10th Feb 18

- x Mrs King
- x Mrs L. Cantini
- + Mrs Leigh
- x Mrs Seymour.
- Lady Evelyn
- x Lady Clinton
- x Lady Rolle
- Mrs Spencer

Rec^d for

- Lady Bradford - 1-11-6
- Mrs Anne Cantini - 1-11-6
- Lycall - 1-11-6
- Mrs Meyer - 1-11-6
- Mrs Tom Wiggins - 6-6-0
- Mrs Waring - 1-11-6

Dec 29.

16 wrote Lady D - Briggs - Mrs Lambright - Miss Clark
Mrs Da - G - Maby & Demie - 6 letters

Monday Miss Comerson - Miss Waring Mr Wedge

Tuesday Mrs Farmer - Mrs Fletcher -
Genl Wyndham - Miss Lovel - Lady D

Wednesday Lady D - Mr Arch? Boyle - Mr John Briggs
Thurs - Mr Pratt Mr Macnamara Miss Briggs -
Mrs Murrell Miss Meyer.

Friday - Mrs Dilke Mr Shoberl - ~~Mrs Mason~~

Saturday - John Miss Meyer Miss Waring Mrs Southam
Madame Vandini - The Glace - The Pen -

Sunday - The Friends - ice -

Monday - Rec? an answer sent letter to Robert to
Mr Wedge ice - Trines -

Tuesday -
Wednesday - Genl Journal.

Thursday - Miss Sully Miss Meyer - Lady D - Briggs
Mrs Farmer - Mr Throggett ~~Miss Pratt~~
Thos Jefferson - D - Lady Bradford -

Friday Lady D - Lrd G - Col Jarvis John

Lady Browning
Lady Norton Lady Colley Mrs. Seymour
Lady Browning

And when I have given my
Reputation and my Beauty.

The temptations and trials
Which the Poverty.

Young Jeanie sat beside the bed
On which lay her poor Mother dead.
As she sat she thought the setting sun
And felt his beams to be her own
When from an ornament to her side,
The quenching hours she died.
The white ornament her little hand
And finally to her side.

She found her own and with great
The sun of life is gone.
And when her heart is cold and
The world is almost done,
The former returns and see
The sun of life is gone.
The sun of life is gone and
With all things fair and bright.

He looked into her tearful eye
And bright eye now is dead
And with a quiver the gentle heart
Behold the world is dead.

But Oh! I have said die in peace;
My sins I would not confess,
And all salvation is left to me,
In another time, another life.

The old man ^{had} ~~had~~ ^{been} ~~been~~ ^{troubled} ~~troubled~~ ^{and} ~~and~~ ⁱⁿ ~~in~~ ^{his} ~~his~~ ^{last} ~~last ^{days} ~~days
Sits looking in his cell~~~~

Oh! James! I have seen in your
An unchristian's ground to tread,
I cannot die, my James, I cannot
I cannot die, in peace.

Then must my last confession bear
The witness that I do not cease

That I believe your James said
As tenderly in his
Thought been a father and a friend

I've seen almost my child
Our poverty was ever great
I have died with death's release

I cannot die before the time
Now suffer this to give

Oh James! then will I be
I have the gentle heart

And then will sorrow for my sake
And weep when ~~we~~ we must part
Now time is short, so listen now,

Weigh every word I say
And when I have confession made
To gether with you to humbly pray
at us

Dec^r

On the 2nd of this month he came
to Blount's Court, on a visit to
see the Lady Drury and son -

Wrote the Song

I smile not now as heretofore
For all my joys are lost

I smile not now for the pleasures
Are numbered with the dead;

Or if purchase a smile there be
Tis like a winking day

On which the sun or moon
Shines

Then quickly glides away

I smile not now!

I smile not now!

On the 11th went to a Morning
Concert at Reading heard Booke
on the Harp — and Mori on the
Violin — They both played very
scientifically — but not pleasantly
Booke has a remarkably
good tone — and when he could would
to play simple airs — it would
be beautiful. Mori is
wonderful — but his execution
on the one string — gave me
a dreadful Head-ache

"The night's trial... were given to me
my pleasure to enjoy,
I should not wish the night to be
my talent to enjoy,
So when they father's... his...
They had some other...
I thought that...
and..."

Books from 11
Linnets No. 34 Pengree 16th Oct 1033

Para - 11th Nov ----- 5-0-0
To 4th Dec ----- 4-2-0

July 26 ----- 1035 -----

In Oct ----- 1033

Linnets No. 34 Pengree

June & July ----- \$ 5-0-0

August ----- 34 5-0-0

Nov

May June July Aug Sept Oct 35 ----- 30-0-0

Feb March April May June 36 ----- 30-0-0
July -----

On the 22nd rec^d printed from
from Bantley -

10
I have not for this that wealth was ^{given}
to buy and break a heart
I have not because that you were ^{gone}
you should from faith depart
I should have held a helping hand,
For that the gold was given
you further should have sprung ^{like}
and trusted true and clean.

3
Oh! Robine! Robine! gently dear!
Poor Janie meekly said,
I cannot begin to hear such words
The dear ^{manly} gently of the dead,
My father grieved as time roll on
The ~~dear~~ ^{untold} ^{his} dying day,
I never told the all that part
But - now - I'd rather say.

10
I should not remember the line dear!
When Janie came from sea
He thought to find a faithful heart
And happiness with me.

To write to with the Little Page
of my Book. ^{those with a cross}
_{written to.}

Lady Catharine Portland	5
Mr Robert Lowndes	5
Mr Charles or Miss Poynter	2
Mr Seymour Miss Davis	2 +
Mr Seymour of Marsham	1
Mr Poynter Mrs Spruce	2 +
Lady Clunton & Lady Portland	2 +
Lady Rolle Lady Cooper	2
Lady John Thynne	1
Lady Bradstreet	1 +
Duchess of Marlborough	1
Lord Bath	1
Lord Dungarvan Mrs Wright	2 +
Lord Minister	1 +
Colt Wynnet Honour Mrs Leigh	2 +
Miss Patten Mrs Thynne	2
Mrs Cavendish	1 +

20

Sir Rowland Boyle Admiral 1
 Sir Charles Kemm 1
 Lady — John & the others 1
 Lord Clinton 1 +
 Lord Durham 1
 Lord James O'Brien 1

We met once more - but only once
 He tore himself away,
 But my mother order forgot his words,
 Untill her dying days.

11

He went to sea - no peace he found
 For he'd a broken heart
 And then a sickness came to him
 That brought him to his grave.
 He bore a Locket with his hair,
 It bore my Mother's name
 He told her - with his dying breath
 That he'd wear all the days.

12

My Mother never smiled again
 For she was ^{over} ^{her} ^{husband} ^{gone}
 Then only pleasur'd to be
 To listen to the wind
 For oh his bones in the deep
 Most mournfully she'd sing
 And then she'd turn away and weep
 As if she were a silent friend & pray

Mr. Guthrie Cecilist	1+
Mr. Harris - John Fairweather	1
* Miss Sully ¹² Mrs Briggs	2+
Miss Briggs & Martha ¹² York	2
Mrs Briggs Brothers Publishers	
The Smiths	2
Miss Tickle	1
Miss Jones ¹² Miss Hancock ¹²	2+
Mrs Marsh - Springeard	+
Mr. Deal	1+
Miss Greene	1+
Mrs. Anne Ventrone	2+
To send Mrs Lewis 2 Welbeck Street Cavendish Square several of the Fifth Page.	
Miss Fairer 6 Wellesley St	1+
Mr. Pohl	1+
Mrs. Anne Mrs Vallance &	2+
Mrs. David Deane	1+

x Miss Shute _____)

Mrs Fisher _____)

Wm DeLam _____

Mrs Smith & Miss Sherr

My Mother never ¹² could again

See she was bound to God,

and when arrived her dying bed,

mother friend in sorrow stood

She looked into my father's face,

and ~~she~~ comfort to impart

Her words of energy divine

Stood deep in every heart

ushed from 12 — 13 her overfraught

Oh! Husband dear! I am greatly mourned

Wish me to ask what I say,

The happiness now happiness was peace

Since learning dying day,

I should have turned thee from thy wish

Resistance should have made,

For thou didst ever trust to me;

Wrote now by me I may'ed.

But what the hour of death is nigh
 And Heaven is in our view
 We see and feel that we have done
 What we ought not to do,
 So now - forgive me - Husband dear
 And bless my child - she'll fly
 Still whisper's Bless me! Bless me! Dear
 Look'd up, and smil'd and died.

15

My father's grief was from the
 As my Mother's hand was mild
 He tore his hair - and said his God
 And said - Child! Child! his God!
 And then he wept and cry'd aloud
 And soon himself convey'd
 Saying I've sol'd both wife and child
 To settle his dying day.

16

Poor James, carried him to the
 And staid her falling tears
 Her poor old Robin and Agnes
 Her anxious thoughts and fears
 For he drew his breath more freely,
 And turn'd his face away,
 As he in trembling voice he said
 From joining prether pray
 never.

Read Lady Morgan's Book
of the Bondair. — it is amusing
enough in parts — but on the
whole trifling — and only to be
read when not very well
and unable to think much

25th — Palmers day — a Belgian
Attack and Long — could not
go to Church

Begun Rogers Poems. was
beautifully illustrated —
I like the Index — very much
Memory — has some lines
said to be found written on a
blank leaf of the Poem
which I transcribe for their
beauty — the Author is not
named.

Pleasures of memory. Oh! supremely blest,
And surely proved beyond all facts, process,
If the pure confines of thy trouncing breast
Contain indeed the subject of thy love!
By one how envied, for to me,
The herald stole of misery,
Memory makes her influence known
By sighs, and tears, and grief alone
I quit her as a friend, to whom belong
The pleasures of evening breath, the rarest fragrance
II

The tales of time mispent, of conjugal loss,
Of gain or wisdom gone for ever by;
Of hopes too fondly nursed, too audibly cropt,
Of many a course to wish, yet fear to die;
"Can aught, except the imitative fear
Not the sensitive, detain me here
When "all the life of life" is fled?
What, but the steep inherent cloud,
Not the beyond the grave, assumes her reign,
And reveals the hell that priests and holiness feign?

~~The first Volume contains~~
The Pleasures of Memory.

Human Life.

Jacqueline

Several Songs and Minn-

Poems - Terminating
with the "Voyage of Columbus.

Lines Unclasp me Stranger
and unfold from the
Spanish Manuscript most
beautifully sung.

Rogers Italy most
beautifully Illustrated. &

Notes &c.

Read the extraordinary story
of Casper Flowers, confined in
a dark cell of never weather till
he was a Man - supposed to
be the son of a Priest
Read Hawthorne his Portraits.

The world again that strong old man
had then he wisely said
Blame not poor Robin James dear
When numbered with the dead,
It is too late to buckle to learn
What was I plainly see
We all are tempted many ways
By gold and power day.

189.
Remembering my former
Novels. I know it true
and all my virtues state he seems
In every act to shine
In every mile coast there his they go
For many thanks to turn in
and never more be sought in
But thanks of Robin Gray.

Jan 7 1834

Friend Walter Scott's

The Fair Maid of Perth

The Antiquary 2 Vols beautiful

My moments now are numbered -

Today no longer here.

Behold the sound of thy sweet voice

My grasping spirit shew

Thou placedst her hand upon his heart

He pressed her & deeply sighed.

Looked in her face her sight was

Without a struggle clear.

Conclusion.

More than a year had passed away

State grace was alone.

She helped the poor and friendless

Their sorrows were her own.

She sought the wretched and the poor

And would their woe be known.

Never a day passed in her mind

But numbers she returned,

And if their faults they came to tell

She for their faults she grieved?

Feb

Finished & sent my Screens to
Lovely Lark

Wrote Charles under cover to Mr
Pittman in answer to his
Letter dated 5th Aug.

Left 13th Court Street 5th wrote
to Mr. Dumbleton 19th

Left Wednesday 11th Court
Street 12th Court Street at 4th of Oct

At 12th - my Mother's birth
Died on Sunday 16th

~~17th began my new year~~

It was one day that in morning
I seemed strangely to feel
The thoughts of change and progression
And being all things to be read
And as she sat - and smilingly
Whilst I was unconsciously felt
A neighbor's hand in - to say
God's name I am come to see.

James smile'd and, as she said,
 You truly welcome were.
 Now I was thinking of the feast
 Without our hope or fear
 But words - it was every evening
 With sleepings - times to smile
 Good feelings come, when not distressed
 Then I become almost serene.

To tell you news - ^{it} sprang quickly, too
 What happiness in that
 Then one whose hand brought me
 But sleepings come on me
 Tell tell this region - there be
 So long in telling good,
 Whose love is unrequited, ^{as I feel}
 And make you promise, too.

But said the ³ melody - ³ occasionally
 Suppose I speak as names
 That ever was dear and gentle dead
 Will you your melody blame?
 And should the one - whom you think dead
 Be living quickly say,
 Short may be sleeping every one
 In jail - ^{in your} wedding day

March

6th received my first Proof Sheet
I saw Mr. Shoberl. Mr. Dudley
Recorder

Saturday 8th Settled on the West
Pinyon - 4 weeks

Wednesday 12. recd. my Proof Sheet

15th called on Mr. Shoberl & Mr. Dudley

17th saw Mr. Shoberl

15th Lady John came to Town

17th Dinner with the Lord & Lady Bingham

18th Took Pintard to Hambleton Place

20th Lady John had one Mr. Bury

seemingly got up the matter of the

Pilgrims of the Rhine. I was in my
last 2 weeks - but on the whole a
strange work

31st Last Proof Sheet to the Recorder

& the three chapters of the Sec. Print to the

Histor. 9-10-11

These words were in the moment said.

As gentle the neighbour's fear,
The Jeanie looked in with a woe
As if she could not bear
To be comforted - the neighbours cried.

This look! this look! 'tis true
It's true - as I am standing here,
My Jeanie is the same.

Stop neighbours stop! from Jeanie
This joy will break my heart.
She sank into the neighbour's arms
Life struggled to depart.

But joy precedes the struggles o'er
Jeanie is at her side.

Her voice recalled her as he said,
I'm come to claim my bride!

Ye gods! what Jeanie's joy will be,
My happy constant wife,
All persons greet should be forgot.

Our joy should be for life,
And our only happiness impart
To every one around.

Now lo! the dead is here alive,
Behold the lost is found.

Copy of notices

Parish Clerk	13
Rev. Dargrave	1
Mrs. Emmerson	1
Mrs. George	2
Mrs. Gray	1
Miss Waring	1
Miss Anne Waring	1
Miss Collins	1
Mrs. Tolson	1
Mrs. Dennis	6
Mrs. Julia	
Miss	
Mrs. David Dennis	
Mrs. Tallant	2
Mrs. Thackeray	1
Miss Lally	2
Lady Catherine Leventish	1
Lady Bradford	1
Lord Basset	1
Mrs. George Murray	1
Miss Bagnall	1

- 20 ^{Mr. [unclear]} Lord Egremont
 26 Col^l Wyndham
 29 Madame Venturi
 Mr. Peab. —————
 30 Miss Ferris

21

- Miss Miss Ferris
 Miss [unclear]
 Miss M. [unclear]

9th Col^l Wyndham

10th Mr Seymour
 Lady Chamber.

13th Lady Rolle.

16 Mr. [unclear]
 Mrs. [unclear]

23rd ^{Market of [unclear]}
 Mrs. [unclear]
 Mr. [unclear]

25th

27 Mr. [unclear]

31 st May 1834	received 20 Copies of my Works from Mr Bentley	20
5 th June	1 Copy detached myself	1
7 th June 15	received from	15
	6 of these presented to me	36
	from Mr Bentley - 30 charged to my account.	
12 th June 1834	Sam ^r Mr Robert received	12
	and paid 12/12 - 0 for 24 Copies of my Works	12-12
June 19	12 Copies rec ^d & paid	12-6
Do - 27 th	12 do do do	12-6
7 July	3 do do do	12-6
17 th Sept	2 Copies	1-1
	1 Copy sent to the Librarian.	
25	3 Copies	1-11-6
20 Oct ^r	4 Copies sent to Miss Weston	3-3
	2 to Mrs Dwyer paid	
	6 sent to one at Marston	2-2
	not paid words 24	
Carried for T. W. Row	30 Oct ^r & 12 Nov ^r	3-3
		40-0-6

Orders for money rec^d for my Books

Mrs Gray	2	1-10-0
Mrs Tolson	1	0-15-0
Mrs Waring	1	0-15-0
Landy Cook	13	5-10
Land B	1	0-15-0
Mrs Leonard	1	0-15-0
Land Munster	1	
Mrs Davis	1	
Myself	1	
	20	first 20 rec ^d not

including 2 for Mrs Gray

Rec^d how distributed

Mrs Gray	2	paid above
Mrs Pingree	1	
Mrs George	1	0-15-0
Mrs Waring a second	1	0-15-0
Mrs Denier - Filly	4	
Myself - Mrs Ba Beal	2	6 4-10-0
Mrs Wallace	2	
Mrs Hancock	1	0-15-0
Land Eggen	1	
Coll Myndha	1	
	14	

Miss Sully	2	40 pms	3.00
Lady Catharine Curwigh	1		3.00
Lady Baselger			
Lord Bradford	1		3.00
Mrs. Talbot Bingham	1		
Lady George Conway	1		0.15
Miss Byron	1		0.15
Mrs. Clarke	2+		
Mrs. Wincemore	1		
Miss Davies	1		0.15
Mrs. Robinson			0.15
Mrs. Squires			0.15
Mrs. G. Bridgeman			0.15
Mrs. Grandford			0.15
2 Mrs. Byalls	2		1.10
Miss Steele	1		0.15
Miss Waring 2 more	2		1.10
Mrs. Rowles	1		0.15
Lady Duncanson			0.12
John			
Lord Spencer			1.10
Thos. Mrs. Spencer			

Dr Mitchell 2	1-10-0
Miss Briggs	
Miss Thibbs	0-15-
Miss Waring	0-15-0
Miss Richeson	
Miss Young by Mrs Gray	15-
Miss Waring	0-15-0
Mrs Phillips 3	2-5-0
Mrs Hamlin	
Miss Moore	0-15-
Miss Warrick	15-
Miss Warrick	1-5-0
Mrs Phillips	0-15-

My wife and I, good and true,
 Then saw that I have married
 And he had got a young woman,
 And I had - and I had a girl,
 When suddenly I saw them say,
 Yes - it is better so,
 And so I'd surely give the best,
 And then they looked at me.

Lady Lash Sept. 1834 on Friday
 20th June 1834.
 Books taken by her Ladyship.

- Lady Lash X 1
- Mrs R Boyle 1
- Miss D 1
- Mrs Saunders 1
- Miss G Murray 1
- Miss Byron 1
- Lord Boyle 1
- Lord Boyle 1
- Mrs King 1
- Mrs Keble 1
- Mrs G Bridgman 1
- Mrs Cranford 1
- Lady Cliffling 1
- Miss Harmer 1
- Lady Cliffling 1
- Colt Jarvis 1

Received 10
 10 - 10
 114 - 10
 5 or 0 per cent
 19 - 10

10th X. 1834. Sept. 1834. the
 whole of the Books taken
 for in that large log
 Lady Lash - see further
 account in Books
 sent to be revised
 for the 1834.

14 taken to Marston from which rec^d
 3 out 27 June } 5 £ 30th June 1834
 6 out 5 July - for which rec^d 5 £ 10th July X

Mrs Gray 2-1-10-0
 Miss Waring 3-5-0
 Mrs Poyntz 1-1-0-0
 Lady Bradford 3-3-0-0
 Miss Pulley 4-3-0-0
 Mrs. Allen 1-0-15-0
 Mrs George 1-0-15-0
 Miss Farnion 0-15-0
 Mrs. Wall 2-1-10-0
 Mrs. Quire 1-0-15-0
 P. L. 0-15-0
 John 0-13-6
 Miss Hester 0-13-0
 Mrs. Spencer 2-1-10-0
 Mrs. Robinson 0-15-0
 Mrs. Portier 3-15-0
 Miss. Linn 0-15-0
 Lady Hester 0-15-0
 Miss. Poyntz 0-15-0
 Mrs. Galloway 0-15-0
 Mrs. Gray }
 Mrs. Gray }
 Mrs. Gray } 0-15-0

27th Wash the Duplicates of heads
of Mr Hancock

28th Called on Mrs Thompson

29th St. Peter's Church.

30 Saw Mr. Harsh go on his 3. sketches
after which Lind presented to his
Boys called on me. I
considered my 4th Bath full of
information & was written
I walked in the evening & over
and myself

July 1 2 & 3 worked a Procession.
for Mrs Gray -

4 5 6 Ill. in my bed on the
5th sent Lady John 6 Books
and Lady Lewis's Portfolio.

In the Evening of the 6th
Sunday I got up and went
into Mr. Davis's and left
who is modelling the field of
Waldo Ave

7th Oct. 12. more Books from
Bentley - for which paid 6/-
Mr. Crispall called on me. for
Mrs. Robinson

July 15th called on Mrs. Hoffman
— Saw Mr. Shoberl who informed
me a note was sent to the
following Places for Revised
Morning Post (Strand).

Old Lane 112 (Strand)

Little's — Beauford House Beauford

Buildings — Mr. Whiting
to order for.

Metropolitan — Capt. Marriott

Called also on Miss Emma Roberts.

22nd Heard from Lind Munster begging
the loan of my Wash.

^{the}
23rd Saw Lind - Journal of Edinburgh
Journal - Wash - Gathering -
John called to see me & I returned
with him - in the Evening
went to Pitts Howard's

24th Saw W. & John - Mrs. Muller
& called on the Ladies.

29 Saw the Court Journal to Mrs. John
Laidy John & Mrs. Gray;
ill early in the Morning.

30 called on Miss Peck about
this time & Rudy Cooper.

List of Books given by me -

Rev. Mr. Munster	1
Mr. Clarke	2
Mr. Purgan	1
Mr. Davis	1
My own	1
Miss Peck	1
Miss E. Roberts	1

August 1st - Pass^d by
2nd - wrote Sir G. Vernon Bt of Col. &
sent Lady Vernon's letter to Mr.
3rd - Wrote to Mr. La - & called on Mr.
Lambert & Miss E. - & wrote to both
I wrote to Lord Lubbock -
Called on Mrs. Moore - wrote to
Mr. George Spence -

This day three years I
be-dest in England from
any long and peaceful road.
May God be with me - and
receive my thanks for all his
mercies - and ever bless my
endeavour as his servant
that care and sorrow so long
inured of my heart - & now
away for some time will last
leave them long alone.

Aug 4

10 Went with Miss Waring to the
City bought in 100th Street
called on John on my way
back lent him 10 £ of my
Pension.

11 Called on James Lane with
to Mrs Molen and ^{George} called in
me in the evening

12 Sunday did not go to Church

11 Heard from Lady Coke that her
had broken a good Sept.

John came in the evening & brought
me 12th my Pension. Lent him
10 £ of it.

12th - Saw Mr Clarke in my study
called on him at Committee Place

Heard from Mr Bell in the E
Henry came from John
~~to see me and get~~ to Mr Molen
with in London

13 Called on Lord ^{John} with Miss Jane Parker
with the Coach — Mr Bishop with
Lang — Mr Burby not at home
Mr Wall — with the Coach —

14th Called on Mrs Leigh — did not
see her — wrote to Mr Callow
with the Court Journal of Mr. Deane
Mrs Robinson & Lady Lech

15th Called on Mrs Lech & sent her
Letters — of Coach to Mrs Hogland.

16th Called on Mrs Lech & sent her
Letters — of Coach to Mrs Hogland.

17 Went to Church — after which called
on Mr P. & gave him Letters — wrote
to Dr Mitchell's house — sent her
by express to Mr. Smith's house.

18th Called on Mrs Lech & sent her
Letters — of Coach to Mrs Hogland.

19 Called on Mrs Lech & sent her
Letters — of Coach to Mrs Hogland.

22. Bought 8 each Vases wife &
Eau de Cologne to Lady (wh-
called on Lady, Loozon & Mrs
Thring.

23rd - Mr. Hobart called on me.
I made him a Present of
Bung for Mrs. Hobart &
Heard from Lady John D.
Mabine had left London
Litho — . in month.

24. Not well - did not go out.

25th - An Express brought me the
afflicting news that my
first good beloved and true
garden — expired this morning
at 4 o'clock.

Mr. Hobart informed me that
the expenses of the Book were
covered —

26 No. letters - scattered - and the Plan
and the things.

September

- 1st Recd my notes from John's
- 2nd was to Black - clear Lind -
road - arrived by the side of his
belongings -
- 3rd Did not go out
- 4th Put on my -
- 5th Mr Richard Peple arrived.
- 6th Wrote to Miss Briggs Mr Wheat
the notes Lady Cliffs
- 7th Went to Church
- 8th Wrote to Lady Lett Mr Richard
- 9th Wrote to Mr & Mrs Lewis - Good all called
on me - the day Mr & Peple had arrived
at 1 in the night & set off for
as you
- 10th Wrote to Lady Lett - called on
Mrs Hayward - Miss Jackson &
Mrs Smith -
- 11th Wrote to Miss Julia & Mr Seymour
Mr Thomas -
- 12th Went to see Miss Boston - Jane Mrs
Landon Wrote to Lady Lett & sent the
Court - journey to Mr Lewis.
- 13th Saw Mr Landon - Wrote to Lady Lett
& saw Mr Phillips.

61
Ann West - Church - (Circles on Hill)
Barnes - (Circles on Hill)
you are all very well - I am well

15th - I have been to the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...

16th - I have been to the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...

17th - I have been to the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...

18th - I have been to the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...

- 19 Rec^d my invoice for Lady East - Paid Mrs
 Purgue up to 5th August - paid Mrs Bond.
- 20th - Mr Phillips called on me - after which
 went about the Prints for my Cards.
- 21st went to Church. Saw Mr & Mrs Agin
- 22nd - Bought my glasses 2-10 - Heard from
 Mrs Leigh - Sent on Basha & Miss Tichell
 Letter to ^{Mr} Phillips about 4 o'clock
- 23rd - Walked in
- 24th - Lord Lake arrived in Town Mr Roberts
 dined here. at Mr Phillips
- 25th - Went to Town with Mr Phillips
 Saw Mr Davis' Picture - ^{3 Books to} ~~read~~
- 26th - Returned to Willen Street -
- 27th - Came to Worcester with Lord Lake &
 Mrs Richard Boyle
- 28th - Saw Mr & Mrs J Menoll -
- 29th - wrote to Mr Home on & Mrs J Wadgum
- 30th - wrote to Mrs Phillips
- 31st - ~~Mr Chobard~~

James Mrs Purgue on leaving Town

7-10-00	Miss Tichell Mrs Throg 2 Books { Col ^{le} Wadgum --- 2 Mrs Phillips --- 1 hand to Mrs Purgue -
3-15-00	
<u>3-15-00</u>	

1st October

1st Wrote to Mrs Fisher

2nd To the Editor of the Imperial News
1st walked with Lady Dungeness & looked up
a Horse.

3rd Wrote to Mr & Mrs Davis Mrs London &
Mrs Dungeness respecting ^{my} the Game - heard
from Mrs Phillipps - Wrote to John ^{about} ~~with~~
Game to go tomorrow - Wrote to the School
for the Distribution of P. Society Clothes.

4th Wrote to Mrs Gray - Heard from
Mrs Dungeness that Col^l Wynneham had
called on the 3rd and paid 30 for my
Books -

5 Wrote to Mrs Phillipps - enclosed a
Letter for Mrs Leigh - & Mrs Dungeness.
Mr. Oswald Reed Praised.

6 Wrote to Lord Munster & Mr Hoffland. ^{& Mrs Dungeness}

7 Wrote to Col^l Wynneham for rec^d of 30 -
Drove with Lady Fisher some the Homers
and the Whitehorns - Heard from
John that he had a letter from Mr
Surrey - Finished receiving the Bridging
one by Mr ^{the House} Watson - very beautiful. The
Book contains also some Poems amongst
which "We have been friends together."

7th - Wrote to Mrs Wrose - Rec^d the first
Prints from Mrs Davis - The end from Miss
Sully to Mrs Leigh.

9th - Wrote to Mr Clark the Engineer
Heard from John W^m P^r combination
another girl - A letter from Mr
Laws - & Col^l Wyndham had said they
were trying for Peter's Promotion.
Heard from Mrs Davis on the 1st
anniversary of Prints. Mr Laws'
letter dated May 24 - Wrote to
Miss Sully -

10 Wrote to Mrs Pongee - and enclosed Mr Davis' letter
to Mrs Wrose - Heard from Lord Munster - and will
send my parcel to Lady Gistron - and to Mr Pongee
10 1852

11 Wrote to John

12 Heard from Mr Hogland about the Church
13. Finished the "Last days of Pompeii" ^{27 Lines} Butler
Exceeding - - - - - even himself.

14th - Went with Lady John to Mrs Danhier's
the concert out

15th - Wrote to Mrs Hogland Miss Briggs and
Heard from Lady Gistron - Wrote to Mrs
Pongee to Mrs Phillips - to arrange
about my game - Wrote to

Lady Woodford - Received from Mrs. Rowland
& Mrs. Moore - who returned Mr. Lewis
Letter.

15th Wrote to Lady Clinton Mr. Bridgman
Mrs. Piquet & Mrs. Phillips Davis
& Mrs. Hooper - 35 letters

16 Wrote to John - no letters -

17
18

19 and Munster & Mrs. Piquet

20
21

22 Mrs. Simmonds.

23 Mrs. Phillips Mrs. Davis & Mrs. Piquet

24 Recd the Acknowledgments & made to
Mr. Shaker Mr. Leigh & Mrs. Piquet

25 Sent a copy of my Works to Miss Hare

26th Sent my Letter - and did nothing
to the end

27th Wrote to Miss Manning

28th Left Westminster - for the sea.

29th a. d. (Pisces) - a geological note
sent - talked in Council House about
the being learned from 26th 28th

30th (Pisces) - a geological note
sent - talked in Council House about
the being learned from 26th 28th

Which - I had discussed with our
Subalterns but of the process do not
the creation of. Many had been found -
Mr. Smith's ^{in the} head written in Mr. T. S. Bury
Prophet Book - under the name of
Amos. Many - also on each of
S. David - &c.

Miss Briscoe from North - & on
Miss Parley an acquaintance of last
Sunday was in the Church -

29th - To-day I went to Mrs. (Philip
30 called on Mr. Harris - at Paul's
Church yard - by Bowdoin's -
at word from Dore's of which - Mr. Dore
sent a note - you had

31 Wrote to Dore's & enclosed
4 Papers - rec'd the Prophet
to the Editor from Harris & returned
some papers -

1st - Mrs. Wrote to Mr. Young enclosed
in return

1st - 1200⁺

Book cost with Pennington 40 - 0 - 6

Income

Price on the 5th 2000 2 1 - 1

30th 2100 2 1 - 1

1817 - 1818

17 - 1 - 1 - 0

45 - 13 - 6

- 1st Boston - South Street
- 2nd South West side of Church
- 3rd Church to Miss W. Manning
Miss Lane - Pastor of West Church
in Chatham Row
- 4th - - - - -
- 5th - - - - -
- 6th - - - - -
- 7th - - - - -
W. H. - - - - -
W. H. - - - - -
W. H. - - - - -
- 8th - - - - -
- 9th - - - - -
- 10th - - - - -
- 11th - - - - -
- 12th - - - - -
- 13th - - - - -
- 14th - - - - -
- 15th - - - - -
- 16th - - - - -

17 Made by the same Mr. F. C. ...
New York

...
...
...

21 Same Job ...

...
...
...

23 Made by ...

25 ...

...
...

December

3

4

1800

... ..

... ..

... ..

... ..

11

15

17

21

22

23

Jan 21 1835

Received from Bank of ...
with account

My ...

...	11	1	
Miss ...	3	0	0
...	2	5	0
	<hr/>		
	0	16	5
	<hr/>		
...	10	6	5
	<hr/>		
...	7	7	0
	<hr/>		
...	2	11	5
	<hr/>		
...	3	5	0
	<hr/>		
...			0

1st January 1755

I give the New Year at Dinner (Dinner) - the great
like appearance to me and it is a great pleasure
for me to be with them.

10th The Lord's Day - I did not go to church.
The same to the 11th - I did not go to church.

11th The Lord's Day - I did not go to church.

12th Monday - I did not go to church.

13th Tuesday - I did not go to church.

14th Wednesday - I did not go to church.

15th Thursday - I did not go to church.

16th Friday - I did not go to church.

17th Saturday - I did not go to church.

18th Sunday - I did not go to church.

19th Monday - I did not go to church.

20th Tuesday - I did not go to church.

21st Wednesday - I did not go to church.

22nd Thursday - I did not go to church.

23rd Friday - I did not go to church.

24th Saturday - I did not go to church.

25th Sunday - I did not go to church.

26th Monday - I did not go to church.

27th Tuesday - I did not go to church.

28th Wednesday - I did not go to church.

29th Thursday - I did not go to church.

30th Friday - I did not go to church.

31st Saturday - I did not go to church.

February -

- 22nd Rec^d 2 Pleasants from Mr. Ben. Jones
1 to Miss Waring & 1 to Mr. Muller.
- 17th Wrote to my dear Mother Charles -
7 Wrote to Miss Young.
- 12 Paid Mrs. Purgess 5⁰⁰ of $\frac{25^{\text{th}} - 2.10 \text{ c}}{\text{Paying for}}$
- 16 Mr. Sherman called on me -
- 20 to 25th - worried about my dear Mr.
Thompson - he had the cheap one -
- 26 Left London & arrived at Bishop's Ward
Mr. Hancock with me - a very night
we are in the coach with -
- 20th Wrote to Fanny Jones.

March.

- Devoted myself to my German Study
- 17th Heard Mr. Richard Wainwright - &
very much pleased with him.
- 18 Went to Portsmouth
Lan. James Jones - only Mrs. J. - very ill
- 19 Saw Mr. J. - writing & corrected for
a week.
- 21 Introduced to Mrs. Weston Nov. 21st
of her husband.
- 22 Rec^d the Critique of my Work from
Mrs. Wainwright.

April

- 13 Called on the Jones' on the death of
their Mother - saw Leonard.
- 15th Left Providence's Ward.
- 17 met Mrs Biddens at Mrs Phillips
- 19 dined at Mr Phillips
- 21 wrote to Mrs Boyle ~~London~~
- 22^d - " " Boston Letter.
- 23 wrote Wendell.
- 24 Mrs Wendell's letter delivered - & answer
rec^d - at night.
- 25 - called on Mrs Foster.

Friday.

- 9th - Monday - My Mr. S. went to Mrs Howard.
10 Mr & Mrs Phillips called on me.
11 Mrs Phillips went to Westbury.
12 Paid my Bazaar. 5th -
14 Mrs Martin's Party - Introduced to the
Miss "Hidland" Mrs & Mrs Lower.
"Hidland" (yes and Mrs) the same. Part of
Miss Julia & Mrs W.
25 Called on Mrs Ward. Met Mrs
Jane - invited to her Party for the 20th
20th - Went to Mrs Ward's. - Introduction
for "Hidland" "Hidland" - called on the
"Hidland" - "Hidland" my Mr. S. gave him
Went to Miss "Hidland" - met Mrs
"Hidland" - who recognized me - having
called on me - "Hidland" - "Hidland"
"Hidland" - she was very kind to me.
Jane introduced to Mrs ^{London} "Hidland".
Mrs Jones -

Miss Hall. Mrs Ward's Sister
The Plan. Mr & Mrs Leicester Standen
were there. - She was Miss Green -
Mrs Ward's Daughter -
Mr Russell sang & Fredy P. Bell
Miss Steele. -
Mrs Linn sang The Angels Whistle
Duff in Oxford St. as Publisher.

30 Miss Waring left for Cambridge.
Wells. I went with her & Mrs Gray
to the Coach -

Journal

- 1st Went with Mrs Gray to the City received
last 5 - Dr Haugue & Holmes Posters
Doubt. Postals - AM 10
- 5th Went to Colburn Rec^d am. am. am.
appointed for Monday 10th at 2 o'clock.
Went with Mrs Gray - He had and
the power to receive the M.S. or
any other Work but through Bentley
therefore the trouble unnecessary
- 7th - White Laundry Rec^d the Sacrament
- 11th Work Miss Boyle
- 12th Miss Sulley
- 15th Lady Cook
- 16th Work Saw Mrs Leigh a nice pleasant
and interesting.
- 17th Work to Lady Chamber Saw Miss Pake
Mrs Davis went with me
- 100 The from the filing of my Tax.
- 20th Spent the day with Miss Boyle Shopping
- 21st - Mr. Devereux Dined - Mr. & Mrs. Howard
in the evening
- 22nd - Lady Cook am

- 20 - I went to Hamilton Place - Saw
Mr James King & Col. Jarvis.
- 24 Hamilton Place Miss Selwyn
& W. Conroy People -
- 25 - The Queen's best Drawing Room
Saw Miss Doyle - Miss Mary
W. Conroy - Cavendish - Mrs Day -
Lord & Lady Lubbock brought me home
Went in the evening to Mrs Lilly -
Saw Mrs Thynne & Miss Hill -
- 26 Wrote to Miss Doyle & Miss Mary
Saw Mrs Phillips - Lady Lubbock
left Town -
- 27 Heard from Miss Doyle
- 28 To St. Peter's Church - Mrs Thynne called
about Miss Hill -
- 30 Mrs Martins Party Thos. Miss
D'arville - met Mr Wall & Son -
Mr Peacock, Mrs Hammond sang

July.

1 Read the 2^d Vol. of the Pacha

2 Walked before Breakfast - wrote went
to the Opera in Evening - Paolini's
benefit - Her dancing - perfectly
& classically beautiful - British
Song - but I have heard Weston -
and I was not so much struck
with her - I Peristonia - I thought
magnificent - and quite deficient
in the primary merit - creation
Dora - danced & her Pacha per
formed well - I was off singing only

3 Went to the Div. office, to John
he took me to the Div. office I
read my Dissertation - called on Mrs
Lynch on my way home - she was
just going out - Read I Peristonia
wrote 3 hours - I shopped in the
Evening bought 2 Pocket Handkerchiefs
my Brother - wrote from ten till
12 - went to bed -

4 Composed the Epitaphs 12 Verses
Wrote to Miss Meyer & Miss Hancock
called on Mrs Phillips - Read Sir
Thomas Lawrence's life - Dearest Tea

with Mrs Davis Miss Sully came at four
7 the mine - Heard from Dr. & G. G.
Read 3 Vols - of Tales of the Pacha -

5 - Sunday - prepared for Church
but fearing the heat - would make
me faint - staid at home - wrote
out fairly & copied the "Asphens
Call answered" - wrote to Lady G.
Mrs Phillips called & sat an hour -
Went to Hamwell Place with my
Litho - called & supped with Mrs Davis.

6. Walked an hour before breakfast
finished 3 Vols of Tales of the Pacha
Began & copied 20 Pages of Emily
Sandford - my own story -
Read Sir Thomas Lawrence's
Order

7. Wrote an hour before breakfast
which time one called on Mr.
Howard & Miss Emma Roberts -
who sent a letter by me to Miss
Landon - I was not well & did
nothing the remainder of the Day

- 8 Wrote to Mr Howard. Walked to Hamble
Place - Received the Metropolitan
Read several numbers of the County
July total. Story of the Sub Editor.
- 9 Finished the Story of the Sub Editor
up to the July number - Accurately
& clearly written - Traced 5 hours
wrote to Lady Cork - Mrs Davis
& her Daughters & Music after
which I copied 4 pieces for Mr Howard
- 10 Wrote Composed the Dramatic Story
Miss D'arville called
- 11th - Completed 5 Pieces of Poetry with a
letter to Mr Howard did not finish
it nearly ten o'clock - I then sent
them with the Metropolitan Magazine
I had borrowed -
Miss Hill called on me from Miss
Boyer - Johnny Charles Alfred &
Samuel came with a letter from
you with a Packet from my
beloved Mother Charles - containing

a letter for John Tommy Downes &
myself dated Oakland's Ashgum 27th Dec. 1834

12. Went to Church to Liberty Chapel
heard a fine Preacher Mr.
but I do not like the ^{man} service
^{in person} therefore do not think I shall
go again -
Hear from Lady Lister Saturday
see that she comes to Town
again -

13. Wrote to Miss Boyle Paid my Bill
at Dyers - called on Mrs Phillips who
went to Home Wagon on Thursday
last - Paid Miss Boyle's Paper Bill
Ind. John Charles' letter by little
Johnny. Went to Beaumont to
hear if Mr. James had heard from
his Sisters - ~~they~~ had not.
Wrote to Charles & Mrs. Bennett
Charles letter enclosed to Mrs. B
Directed New Norfolk Harbortur
Van Diemens Land letter cited
12th July -

14. To Mr Charles' Letter to the Post.
Sitting at work heard a distressed
screaming in the Street - a child
run over - the poor Mother
caught it up - and ran into the
first place which presented itself
it see if it were hurt she after
wards grasped the Hindon -
looking most anxiously at the
Child in her arms - who held his
little hand up for her to kiss.
Mr G Lewis sent home a borrowed
Book - the Two years at Sea - This the
boy brought it with a note - say he
fell down & was nearly smothered
with his knee I walked home with
him on my return Lady Lark
called on me to go to her the next
morning. I read Washington
Trinity's visit to Newstead & Albotsford
I would not have supposed him to write
any thing so poor. The story of the little
white Buller is several - most affecting

15th Went to Lady Cork at Ten -
The Investiture of the Ribbon which
Lady Cork expected, put off, till next
Wednesday - Mrs Bridgeman
Robert Boyle. at the P. People
Comptrolary called - To avoid late
two o'clock - Came home. Mr Jones
came - Miss Sally came in
the evening with whom I walked
part of the way home -

16 Wrote to Emma Roberts -
She called with a. v. answer -
Mr Dever her friend will call on
me - also - Arranged to go to Beulah
Read one Volume of H. Calverly -
Wrote to Lady Cork -

17th Prepared for Beulah, and read till
time of departure 1/2 2 -
Left at 10 minutes before 3 - arrived
on Beulah 1/2 past 4 - I was
delighted with the day the spot
but more than all with the
woman - I had my fortune told the
first time in my life I was guided
of such good luck with a gypsy -
She told me I thought much &
studied much - Alas! she will
not see my face - She foretold
my future happiness - Oh - Many
Heaven also be propitious -
and change the gloom into some
whale of the sunshine of life -
We got into the maze I did not
like it - I never do any thing from
which I can see no exit -
A gentleman traveling the same
way round offered to conduct us

we were lost for some time
to his great annoyance - The
entrance begins by a bed of
Roses - when we again found
ourselves there, he took his leave
regretting he had kept us so
long on Thames. We then attended
our Party and enjoyed a most delight-
ful Drive home - After which I finished
Vol 3^d Volume of Harry Calverley -
19th Rev^d Mr. Wade to meet Miss Boyle
in Hamilton Place - I only
waited there scarcely one Week
when I receiv^d a 2nd Note to say
she was disappointed of cards
wh. come to Town. I returned
home and rode to Ludlow (Lark) &
Barnard went for a long
walk in the evening with
Wm Davis -

20th - Did not go to Church - In the evening went to Bays water to collect Mr. & Mrs. Partridge -
21 Write an account of Needle -
22 - Rec^d a letter from Susan De Lumb
Went to see the Aerial Ship - introduced myself to the Lady who introduced at the Proprietor & I intend going again - where I shall give a detailed acc^t

23rd - Went to Miss G's sickle respecting her friend Miss Benson - her whose address I called on ^{at 10 o'clock} ~~at 10 o'clock~~ Miss Grant in Ham. Place.
In Mr. Lawrence's in London but could not learn it -
All sincerely thro' weeks

24th - Went to Mr. Brantford's party called on Miss E. Roberts - took Mr. Beave - Sam Allen - Birmingham - J. Turwin - Old & young Mr. Lawler - Mr. Sprie - Miss Roberts' friend - Miss Caroline Ward - Lady Hoyle -

Wm Wood - Miss Hall - Mrs Roll & Son
Mr Lovell & Mrs W Russell

29 went to Susan respecting her child
30 got her a letter & apprised her of such
31 was at Mrs McCormick's 33

Stuffed Place Buckingham
Gate Pimlico - I went with Mrs
Pungre - Susan brought with
her Cynthia - She talked most insen-
sibly about her child - She is now
with her friend Mrs Palmer - in
Mrs McCormick's house -

Copy of a Letter I wrote to Susan
Roberts - called also Part DeLunha

Susan's Medication -

Springing from your conversation
when I saw you on Thursday last, that
you really forget or carry things you appear
desirous to remember - I now write
what I think best you respecting the giving
up your little girl - now three - as I
your sleeping and referring to that
letter, it will I hope some measure
of health be made respecting her - I am
your Father brought her to her Uncle
and you afterwards gave him a written
engagement that he was to take her
back to your Mother as I had ^{to have}
him - ~~as~~ I was about to accompany
my Brother you thought that I and
my Mother would give her that which
which as her tender age she required.
I conclude that, at the time, it was
not in your power to furnish her with
clothes - as you ^{washed} - for all she had
were two little ^{washed} dresses - each with
shoes of ^{which} ^{old} ^{and} ^{with} ^{the} ^{very} ^{same} ^{material}
to correspond. I supplied

in with every thing a child in good
society ought to have for a very long
voyage - without being able to wash
for her on Board. I supplied her with
I think the only things that were wanted
of her own, were her little Coral Necklace
&c. &c. & I did give her some such as brought
to her at Gosport in the West. The Doll
was preserved for your Dear Mother's use
and was sent with her necklace
& all her clothes in them to her
Dance - I also sent a variety of
things from our cargo, my own
and I cannot tell what, which
I did think she might be dressed
as ~~she~~ she had been with me,
without expense or trouble for a
long time -

I tried all in my power to help her
the her father come to me, but I
having given my children a good
I had no authority to detain her.
He sent Mr. Butler the Lawyer to
receive her, to whom she was
given up by me in sight of

all those ~~of the~~ ^{of the} were then on Board -
During the voyage Parky went on
shore ~~and was~~ ^{was} treated ^{the same} as
myself - At Bahia a Week - at the
Lake five days - and at the Swan
Cove of Weeks - The food provided for
us ^{by the} ~~was~~ ^{at} the Savan River
was coarse and scanty - which
obliged me to buy me some extra
living as we did in the open air
and ~~and~~ ^{and} ~~she~~ ^{she} was always
obliged to be changed in the middle
of the day - but I would not
wash or wash of the things
and five shillings a Day - was
charged for every article small
& large together - Without that
cleanliness she never w^d have
lived - as it was her Disposition
were so constant & great. She
~~she~~ ^{she} thought she would have
melted away - ~~at~~ ^{at} the same
I always took care she had ^{something}
~~discuss~~ ^{discuss} ~~in~~ ⁱⁿ ~~time~~ ^{time} between
each meal as a support to her
exhaustion

I sincerely mention all this to show you
that altho' I believe not your gratification
in that of any business being
doing my duty - which is the only
real pleasure in life - then as
soon as you bridge your child's life
over one it ^{has left} ~~to an unprofitable~~
pleasure - to any inconstant - care
or a time when I had neither health nor spirits
what she ~~was~~ ~~with me~~
The actual expenses for her was
at least twenty ^{four} pounds - you
can show this letter to any of those
who went out with her - who saw
how she was brought to the Board
and in there.

You she said it was your anxiety
to repay me this part of the
obligation - in which I can have
no reason for ~~abandoning~~ ^{to} ~~you~~
and therefore I ^{was} ^{able} willing
receive your money ~~by~~ ~~receiving~~
the money ^{as soon as you like} - but recollect it is
for the above expenses, and not

15. L
for his Passage ~~to~~ which I pay
Purse paid ~~for~~ out of Money he had
my Letter directed to me which I shall
I trust you are Thursday last.
33 Stafford Place, Birmingham
Purchases will be received for
me till the end of the present
Month - August - and will be
sent to me ~~as soon as delivered~~
I hope you get ~~your~~ ^{your} ~~papers~~ ^{papers} ~~safely~~ ^{safely} and
~~that your~~ ~~business~~ ~~will~~
~~and~~ ~~the~~ ~~circumstances~~ ~~of~~ ~~which~~ ~~will~~
we should you prefer having it in
my own hand. I will meet you at
any time you may appoint till
the end of the Month
Yours Robert.

This Letter was sent by me
on the 4th August.

August -

3^d Texas to join Mrs Ward's Party at
Blenlock to dinner to Parsons - Texas
is ill to you - very tiresome.

4. Walk to Mrs De Lunham -
Lady Lash & Miss Boyle

I rec^d a letter from Miss Boyle with
one for my friend -
An unfavorable letter from Mr Howard -

7 Called on Mrs Howard Mrs Whittaker
Howard from Lady Lash & Lady D -

8 Walk to Lady Morgan Mrs Leigh
Bourne & Lady Park - Mrs Whittaker

9 Walk to the Lake Chapel - nears.

10 Rose at 7 - Mrs Thomas Boston felt I
visited the family to go to the upper
court - called for the 3rd and had 10
wanted also in the half - just ten -
arrived at 11 - Mrs Lash

Dinner with her Mrs De Lunham
sent to Mrs Howard - Blenlock & Mrs Howard -

able girls - Mrs G. Bondy -
Lady Boyle Miss Boyle & Miss Mary
Culver in the evening -

10 Had my Bath first in the Exhibition
room - made a little - conversed
with Miss Mary Jones principally -
I like her very much -

11th Rode at half past six - Had my
Bath - made a little - conversed
with Miss G. & Mrs. D. & Mrs. H.
Went to Lady G. - Put a Letter
from Barrington for Mrs G. -

12 - Went
14 - I was ill -

15 - Mrs. White called -

16 - I was ill -

17th - Mrs. G. called -

20 - Mrs. G. called -

21

20th Went to Mrs Phillips in the morning
21st The Wash Mrs Phillips & Mrs Davis to
see the Royal Ship - the Captain
& crew left her as we approached
I then went with Miss Wynne
& Mrs Hillon also on board
22nd Sunday walked with Miss
& Mr. Hillon to the Terrace, Bath
Park, where we saw a fine
which called us - Mrs Hillon
Largan.

31st Monday I walked in company with
Miss Hillon & Mrs Wynne
Read Emma's (Miss Hillon's) observations
on the river in the evening
Largan - brought out by
Largan -

By Mrs Hillon to Mrs Wynne
Mrs & Miss Hillon from the
Largan - shall call

Journal

- 1st Walk to Lady Leake & Lady ...
- 2nd Walk to the Custom House with ...
- 3 Called on Mrs Beyle ...
- 4th Walk to Lady Leake ...
- 5th Walk to ...
- 6 Walk to ...
- 7 Walk to ...
- 8 Walk to ...
- 9 Walk to ...
- 10 Walk to ...

24
The first of the
The second of the
The third of the
The fourth of the
The fifth of the
The sixth of the
The seventh of the
The eighth of the
The ninth of the
The tenth of the
The eleventh of the
The twelfth of the
The thirteenth of the
The fourteenth of the
The fifteenth of the
The sixteenth of the
The seventeenth of the
The eighteenth of the
The nineteenth of the
The twentieth of the
The twenty-first of the
The twenty-second of the
The twenty-third of the
The twenty-fourth of the
The twenty-fifth of the
The twenty-sixth of the
The twenty-seventh of the
The twenty-eighth of the
The twenty-ninth of the
The thirtieth of the
The thirty-first of the
The thirty-second of the
The thirty-third of the
The thirty-fourth of the
The thirty-fifth of the
The thirty-sixth of the
The thirty-seventh of the
The thirty-eighth of the
The thirty-ninth of the
The fortieth of the
The forty-first of the
The forty-second of the
The forty-third of the
The forty-fourth of the
The forty-fifth of the
The forty-sixth of the
The forty-seventh of the
The forty-eighth of the
The forty-ninth of the
The fiftieth of the
The fifty-first of the
The fifty-second of the
The fifty-third of the
The fifty-fourth of the
The fifty-fifth of the
The fifty-sixth of the
The fifty-seventh of the
The fifty-eighth of the
The fifty-ninth of the
The sixtieth of the
The sixty-first of the
The sixty-second of the
The sixty-third of the
The sixty-fourth of the
The sixty-fifth of the
The sixty-sixth of the
The sixty-seventh of the
The sixty-eighth of the
The sixty-ninth of the
The seventieth of the
The seventy-first of the
The seventy-second of the
The seventy-third of the
The seventy-fourth of the
The seventy-fifth of the
The seventy-sixth of the
The seventy-seventh of the
The seventy-eighth of the
The seventy-ninth of the
The eightieth of the
The eighty-first of the
The eighty-second of the
The eighty-third of the
The eighty-fourth of the
The eighty-fifth of the
The eighty-sixth of the
The eighty-seventh of the
The eighty-eighth of the
The eighty-ninth of the
The ninetieth of the
The ninety-first of the
The ninety-second of the
The ninety-third of the
The ninety-fourth of the
The ninety-fifth of the
The ninety-sixth of the
The ninety-seventh of the
The ninety-eighth of the
The ninety-ninth of the
The hundredth of the

now which they are fresh in any sunny
land beyond - received ^{some} ~~many~~ of verses
with which his attention was fixed
both by their intrinsic merit, and the
exceedingly beautiful handsome hand
in which they were written. The
author was surprised and for a
time baffled all inquiry - but with
zeal in the pursuit of the noble
genius at whose shrine she bowed
she left nothing untried to show

her devotion. Her Bygones Sister the
Honorable Mrs Leigh - received a Parcel
also containing several - also containing
presents for every one of the Children
named and attached to the Volume.
which articles were of great beauti-
ful value - Lady's work - and were
with her on the way some few gifts
had - The good will and curiosity of
the Ladies were awakened and
increased by these and several
similar proofs of the civility of
the Ambassador. A Seal was also
sent to his Embassy - with the
other " Mrs Francis was said - Jan
1701" The presents being by friends
of the heart's ease - Determined to
find out the Ambassador he
Leigh obtained her history which
is now in the possession of Mrs
Leigh - and which is as follows.

The Lady was a Jewess - she had
been brought up by her father -
in the Jewish principles - in
that was a "free thinking"
but notwithstanding such an
education - she was brought
in a family of the first Rank
in England - with six or seven
daughters - The correspondence
after this, became frequent &
terminated in an interview -
where she - the General - and
fashionable Ragon - were - a
great - chumsy - fat - Woman -
she was ready to drop - but
his self convinced enabled
him to shut his eyes to the
figure - which he bowed to
the beautiful - young girl - like
hand.

And the Brethren and Pym's
presence was very joyful
and we were the first to see
in the Sir J. Frith's old
my old singing book.

~~The following day (11th)~~
was Sir J. Frith's 70th birthday
and a countenance of such pleasure
said "I have some good news to com-
municate" And a smile of delight
burst through his eyes and "I thought
I was going to see my old friend
was not a little surprised when he replied
"Moore has returned very late
I promised to give you the
"Moore's" which was disappointed
"I thought you would be so late."
"Yes" I said "but I am very
and Mr. Moore took pleasure therein
but Moore said they should and
I surmised that they would not be

destroyed - A meeting of the five
and several by the name of
Sir J. C. Hathhouse said that any
negotiation with was ~~to~~ expressed
in his mind that they could be
Mr. Moore wished them to be because
he had received two letters
I have them and had in
the name of Mr. Moore and
a certain agreement that if
and they had before in relation
to the same they were no longer his.
Mr. Hathhouse declared that he
the agreement, but it contained
nothing - Mr. Moore declared
there was no such agreement
and that gave it against Mr.
Moore. Mr. Moore ~~was~~
that ~~the~~ ~~name~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~two~~ ~~letters~~
I had received the morning
and had sent out of my

20 Sunday March 4th (This is
the anniversary and in the
evening to have been read in
Bryn Mawr - but the weather was so
foggy

21 Read a bit - gave Miss Dyer
the money for the King's Book
25 - finished the book

22 Miss West of New-Beever - Miss
C. - at home - they all
called - and had a very
pleasant party at night - and a
great deal of conversation
about the school - the school
and the school - the school -
John of David - the school -
and the school - the school -
taller - Miss Cooper - very good

23 Called on the school - the school -
and the school - the school -

25 Called on Mr. White
at his office, about the end
of June. He showed me a copy
of the *Phyllophaga* ...

... made my apology ...
... to see ...
... called ...
... progress of ...
... simple ...
... and cuts figures in ...
... and ...
... possible ...
... surprising ...
... in that ...
... fine ...
... passing the

for the
... ..
... ..
... ..

20
... ..
... ..
... ..

21
... ..
... ..
... ..

22
... ..
... ..
... ..

October.

- 1 Went to Lake View (covered)
- 2 - - - - -
- 4 Went to St. Peter's Church - One of the
Lecturers. It was the commem-
oration of the Tricentenary
of the Translations of Miles
Barrow's Bible.
- 6 Laid in Port Andrew.
- 7 Went to Frederick's with Miss Mahony
- 8 Went to Lady Luck
- 9 ~~to~~ to - - -
- 10th Went to Charles' and at Port
Phillip. Met Mr
- 11 to 15th - quiet, no work -

15th Took to Carter's Magazine
I send you some
The Holy of the Tables
The English it calls discovered

16th An excursion to Mount -
Wrote to Miss Waring and
sent her Miss Waring and
come and was expected on the 17th
Called on Mr. Smith the next day
Lunch - wrote to her and made her

17th Called on Mr. Smith - dinner
Miss Waring - and
Wrote to Mr. Smith (the next day)
Heard from Mr. Whitehead.

18th Wrote to Mr. Whitehead - called on
Miss Waring -

19th Heard Mr. Reed preach on the
Millennium - I was surprised &
glorified
Mr. Davis spent the evening with us

20th Mr. Whitehead called -
21st Went to the City bought ⁵⁰ 21st

26th - Signed the Agreement with
Mr. Whiteaker.

Nov^r

- 1st Went to Belgrave Chapel
- 2nd Heard Dr. Thos. - Saw Mr. P.
Pushed my Brother Charles' Box
- 3rd - Heard from Lady from from Reading
wrote 2nd of a youth called from
Mr. Fuller about the Cards -
- 4th Intended to have left Town but
deferred it till the 5th
- 5th Received from my Place - Wrote to
Miss Waring Mr. Bevon & Mr. ...
- 6th Left London at 11 before 6 o'clock for
the Union Mail a Lady and a Gen
leman in the Coach. stopped at about
11 for Tea & Supper.
- 7th Saturday was infected at ...
which lasted till the pleasant conver-
sation with my companions which
continued till we arrived at ...
Just before which Mr. Whiston left
us - and Miss Parker at the Office
where we changed the Coach - A plea-
sant Military man conversed with
me to Harrogate where we had
again to change in a miserable

- out night I arrived about half
past ten Tried of course -
- 05 Sunday did not go out -
- 9 Unproductive
- 10 Begun ~~to~~ copied Draft to make
- 11 Worked
- 12 Went to Popon Machine - the
Minister ~~was~~ finished my Duff
- 13th Opened my writings & wrote
up my journal -
- 14 Begun on Penmanship for Mrs
Barnes made to Lucy Fisher &
began to rewrite Emily Fitzgerald
- 15 Went to the Minister - heard Dean
Hubber Preach a good old fashioned
Sermon Mrs Jameson - Mrs
Porter heard - very lovely -
In the evening I heard Mr
Whitcomb - one hour & 20 mi-
nute Sermon - Watch & pray
for your sinners not when the
hour cometh -

- 16 Went to Dudley -
Wrote to Lady Anne Bouverie for 50.0 -
- 17 Wrote to Mrs Piquet & Mrs Davis
enclosing the £20.0 - Dressed
Tea with Mrs at Mrs Darbora's -
Went to the Library - Mr Jefferson
Librarian Mr Poole came in - Mrs
Lapham & Mrs Smith - he was once
in the 10th - Called on the Misses Plague.
- 18 } Wrote hand 100 Pages by the Saturday
19 } and finished the Pinnaculum
20 } for Mrs B -
21 }
- 22 Sunday rest -
- 27 Wrote to Lady Lash
- 28th Finished the copy of my Story etc
which I had been engaged the whole
Week -
- 29 a very wet Sunday did not go out -
- 30th I began my Story of the Father

1st Wrote several pages of my new story
in the Dublin University Magazine
sent me by Mrs Jefferson.

Wrote to Mrs Ferguson & Mrs
Byrne in Brighton.

6 Sunday did not go to Church - having
been ill.

7th & 8th Wrote my story of the father
Miss Jefferson's. With a sermon called

9th Wrote for a volume called Mr
Watson -

10th Wrote all the day.

11 Wrote to the Town Hall & it
meeting for the relief of the Lord

Levett Mr Grey in the Chair
supported by Genl Dalbiac and

Mr Danvers - and De Grey
speech was very good - Genl

Dalbiac's the same -

A Mrs Dean seconded
the motion Mrs Coates a lawyer in

the Yorkshire dialect spoke
sharply - who pronounced well

he said the Public had to say
with some feeling, and to the
purpose. - Then followed an Mr
Grey - a good man - doubtless
thundered thro' a long speech
after which an Mr. Weedman
spoke with great eloquence.

The subscription was 339£

In the evening read some of

Worcester's reward - ~~see post~~
12th called on Mrs. Beaumont -

13th - Went to the Minister

14 worked

15 wrote.

16 wrote & went to the Orange Library
with Thomas Jefferson.

Talked to Burnett who mentioned
Col^l Eccleston residing at Cheltenham
was in the 10th Clerk to Paymaster
Maryby.

17th - Wrote to Lady Lisle.

18th or 19th unable to do any thing
for head ache.

20 Sunday. Did not go to Church
There were been here six ^{Weeks} ⁱⁿ ^{the} ^{Public} ^{House} ^{at} ^{the}
which time I have worked of course

2 Pincushions - one gown - one
flannel Dress - & washed an
Apron. Rewrote Emily
Fitzmorris - & wrote the origi-
nal of the Statute. Read the
Periodicals - papers - & Mrs
Worster's Woman's Friend -
Norton Conyers

21 - Worked

22nd - Wrote to Sir Bellingham Graham
Norton Conyers.

23 & 24 Wrote & worked out. LkL -

25th - De'mas Day - May God prosper me,
and be with me - Amen.

January 1836.

1 Nothing remarkable wished and
wrote and inwardly trusted that
it may be the beginning of
a better and a happier
year to me.

2 - Not well -

3 Sunday went to hear Mr. Whitesides

4 5th preparing for my journey -

7 Left Ripon at 10 o'clock and in

8 Milton St. at 5 am

9 Made it, nearly dark & Miss Homecom
is ^{at the station} waiting

10 Sunday - did not go out - did find
take care - Mr. W. Phillips & Mary
him called on me -

11 - Made it early Bradford.

12 In my room tried to write but could not.

13th - Dined with Anne Phillips & some Mary
Ginn - whom I like better than the others.

4 Received a friendly letter from Mr. Thoburn
which surprised and pleased me -

15 Answer Mr. Thoburn's letter. Wrote to
Ladies Lyell & Lady Derwent - and
Mr. Thoburn.

16 Saturday night - gratefully acknowledged
a pleasant letter from Mr. Beckwith
promising me the Proof Sheet the
beginning of the Week - May God
bless and prosper our thro' my
labour -

I began a Bag for Mrs. Ward.

17th Sunday went to St. Peter's Church -
Took my Seat - called on Mr. Mac-
namara - Mr. Lapping come -

18 Hand from Lady Bradford - brought the
Draft for her - & wrote to her -

19 Called on Mr. Beckwith for ^{the} ~~the~~ ^{Miss Lully}
Mr. Allen to take her ³ Burrows.
Burdoll -

Called on Miss Thorby - also the
Worth Shop recommended by Mr.
Shoberl - & called on Lady Cooper.

20 Wrote to Lady Fisher - Mrs. Burrows &
Miss Lully - Went to Mrs. Phillips

21 Wrote - visited - went to the 'Doris'

22 expressed Mr. Shoberl & my Proofs.

23 Mr. Shoberl come - I advised to let me
know if any thing can be done
with -

24 Friday - Temp 80° - Wind S.W. -
In the forenoon in a shower (the
day previous) -

25 Saturday - Temp 80° - Wind S.W. -
Same hour as the day before -

26 Sunday - Temp 80° - Wind S.W. -
Same hour as the day before -

27 Monday - Temp 80° - Wind S.W. -
Same hour as the day before -

28 Tuesday - Temp 80° - Wind S.W. -
Same hour as the day before -

29 Wednesday - Temp 80° - Wind S.W. -
Same hour as the day before -

(Feb. 1845) - 1845

1st
... ..

2nd

3rd
The first

4th

5th

6th

7th

8th

9th

10th

11th

12th

13th

14th

15th

16th

17th

- 16 Made to Henry James Lane Mr. Galt
 17 Made to Henry James Lane
 18 Received to Henry James Lane - saw many people
 19 Made to Henry James Lane - saw many people
 20 Received to Henry James Lane - saw many people
 21 Spent day -
 22 23 24 Proofs
 25 - Dined out with Mr. Phillips to the Lady's
 Davis - met Mr. Ruckham - Mr.
 Richards -
 26 - Heard from & wrote to Lady L. - read 5th
 27 Proofs
 28 Went to Mr. Debit's and Lord Byron
 presented work to me -
 29 Mr. Byron came
 30

March

- 1st - Heard from Lady of Robt
- 2nd - Dined with Mrs Phillips
with Mrs & Mrs Meaden Mrs & Mrs
Creston & Mrs who walked
home with me.
- 3rd Miss Mackenzie called Mrs Byrne
Mrs Phillips & Mary Ginn -
- 4th Mrs Hudson & Mr. Fisher called together
to make for Whitechapel about the
Reviews
- 5th - Landed for me
- 6th - Did not go to (Reviews in consequence)
- 7th - Dined with
- 8th - Went to Mr. M. with Mrs. Byrne
Byrne on Sat evening - dinner
Roberts - Mrs & Miss Mrs (they
no music - the table covered
with flowers who presented to
the Reviews -
- 9th 10th - Finished copy of Sat of
- 11th called on Mrs Phillips - Mrs Cook
of United Union Journal by Mrs
Jane Hale of New Monthly
Wade to Whitechapel

This
copy
16

13th ...
 14 ...
 15 ...
 16 ...
 17 ...
 18 ...
 19 ...
 20 ...
 21 ...
 22 ...
 23 ...

- 24 Wrote to Whiteaker for Robert -
sent name certificate to Miss Boyle
Wrote to Lady & Mary Boyle.
Miss Sully came for 2^d volume
- 25 - Heard from & wrote to Lady Cork
Wrote to James Farrel -
Rec'd 2 Doyen's Bachelors
Whiteaker - & heard from Lady
& Miss Mary Boyle.
Drove with Miss Boyle from
11 till 2. Black saw John Boyle
accidentally -
- 26 did not write
- 27th Sunday went to Church
Mrs Hillon came the Phillips &
Mary Anne -
- 28th Went to Lady Cork - heard letter
one returned some letters read
Mrs Hillon came - Mrs
Doyen left out -
- 29th Mrs Phillips came I went
to Mrs Hayward & Mrs
Cork - returned home

Done with Miss [unclear] & see
Mr. Grant's [unclear] theme &
Lodge [unclear] some [unclear]
[unclear] Chapel - 3 [unclear]
[unclear] & [unclear] you heard
[unclear] the salary 300 a [unclear]
and Miss Wilson [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]

30) [unclear] which [unclear] to
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]

31) [unclear] [unclear] & Miss [unclear] came
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]
[unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear] [unclear]

April -

1st Good Friday - Went to Church & saw
the Sacrament it rained -
The gentleman in the pew
civilly asked how I was home
with me - but the servant being
in waiting saved him. He brought
me the Metropolitan with a
beautiful vignette on
Dorset's tomb - Copied it - Sent
my letter to Charles - Wrote John
& Mr Phillips with copies -

2nd Went early to Lady Lesh -
spent the day - Lady Dungen
brought me home - Wrote to
John for Harry to dine with
me at Mr Phillips.

Met Capt Courtney Boyle at
Lord Lesh's & Doct^r Mitchell

3rd - Sunday - went to Church - a very
wet day - Heard some thing to
excite the circulation of Henry
Wade to Mrs Phillips - Mrs
Boone Mrs Whiteaker & Miss
Talbot.

4th - Mrs Phillips called on me with
Athenaean - Then went to
Lady's Lodges - walked with her
to Mrs Boyles - charmed with
Mrs Boyles - pleased as she may
be considered - Returned to
Hornblower Place - set work. ^{at}
Dunghardoon - till Lord Bath
& Lord John. They came
within 1000 yards of London. -

5 - Wrote to Mrs Mother John
after which I was ill for
the day

6th Mr. in court - Put envelope
to Mrs. Leight Miss Boyles -
Mrs. Howard - (had an answer
from Mrs. Dick - made again
of note. to Whitaker -

7 - Had two letters from Whitaker
1 from Mrs. Howard
1 from Mrs. Leight.

8 - Called on Mrs. Howard Mrs.
Byrne - Miss Saunders -
Howard & wrote to James Jones.

9 - 10th - 1/2 not well.

11th Monday James Jones spent the
(day with me - Mr. Whitaker
came in the evening -

12th wrote to Mrs. Dick - no answer

13th ~~14th~~ 14th Ill - Mrs. Leight had called -

14 - Called on E. Roberts - Mr. Byrne - & Mrs.
Leight could not see the letter -

15 wrote to Miss Boyles E. Roberts with
letters - and with Lucy Cash -

16 Wrote to Miss Bingle for Howard &
Mr. Litchard - Miss Landon
not at home - called at Mr. Phillips
& brought her some copy of Sonnet.

17th Monday - 2. Received 3 copies of
the new edition of the Sonnet of Miss
Landon - some have been on the
ground -

18 Wrote to Mrs. Darnley - with
letter from her - 4 lines from
the new edition of Miss Bingle's two
letters.

19 Saw Mr. Herbert - called on Miss Landon
at her home - took with Miss
Bingle to Whitehead of Dr. P. 2

20 Saw Mrs. Landon - called on her
at her home - note of some books.

21st Miss Bingle left London & Miss
Bingle - copy of the new edition of
the Sonnet.

22nd 2 copies of the new edition
of the Sonnet - sent her to Miss
Bingle - & the new edition of the
Sonnet - Mr. Herbert copied from
her home -

- 22 - Made out some of Misses Kelley
 under the same name of P...
- 24th Sunday Feb. the whole day
 I read - in the evening went to
 Mrs Davis's - I have called -
- 25 Last night spoke & preached by
 I went to Mrs. ...
- 26 Miss ...
 my brother ...
 Mrs Davis ...
- 26 ...
 ...
 ...
 ...
- 27 ...
 ...
- 28 ...
 ...
- 29 ...
 ...
- 30 ...
 ...

Journal -

1. Monday - went to Brook - laid
the ground - ground - ground
and ground - ground - ground
ground - ground - ground

2. Tuesday - in my bed -
3. Wednesday - went to the school
and ground - ground - ground

4. Thursday - in my bed -
5. Friday - went to the school
and ground - ground - ground

6. Saturday - in my bed -
7. Sunday - went to the school
and ground - ground - ground

8. Monday - in my bed -
9. Tuesday - went to the school
and ground - ground - ground

10. Wednesday - in my bed -
11. Thursday - went to the school
and ground - ground - ground

12. Friday - in my bed -

- 12 - Out to see some of the ...
 13 - ...
 14 - ...
 15 - ...
 16 - ...
 17 - ...
 18 - ...
 19 - ...
 20 - ...
 21 - ...
 22 - ...

- 23 -
 24 -
 25 -
 26 -
 27 -
 28 -
 29 -
 30 -
 31 -

May -

- 1 Went to Church but was ill in consequence of having written too much the 2 preceding days
- 2 3 & 4 Ill
- 5 Dressed with difficulty to see Lady Dungeonwight (cont)
- 6 & 7th Sunday saw Anne Phillips
- 9 Spent the morn^g with Lady Cosh - walked with her to Mr Boyle - then home.
- 10 & 11 Worked a good deal -
- 12 Mr Windsor & Mr Homecom called.
- 13 - With Lady Cosh who drove me home - heard of poor Mr Norton - saw Miss Tickle -
- 14 Heard from G. & wrote Mr Rowlett
- 15 Sunday - Heard the Deane of Carlisle
- 16 Wrote L^d Cosh with Mr Martin's plan - Mr Leigh - Whitaker
- 17 Called - Peggy Davis Miss Mahoney - Mrs Byrne - Lady Cosh
Went to the Martins -
- 18 Went to L^d Cosh - saw Miss Murray & Miss Selwyn & Mary Boyle - called on Mr Jordan - Anne Phillips in the eve
- 19 Heard from Mrs Leigh & Lady Cosh -
- 20 Wrote to E Roberts - Mrs Martin with Books invited to Mrs Wood's
- 21 Went to L^d Cosh - ~~with~~ wrote Anne Phillips & John with Martin's plan
- 22 - Church - but too ill to stay the Sacrament - In the eve saw Mr & Mrs Fish at the Davis's.
- 24 Miss Mahoney called of Mrs Rowlett - Mr Martin in the eve
- 26 Went with Anne Phillips to L^d Cosh's (Col^l Wyndham called on me
- 28 - Mrs Wood's party - the thing better day I had Tickle
& the (wrote with Mrs Byrne - disappointed at not seeing
the Boyle Family - Mr Hilton drove me home -
- 30 Heard from the Deane of Wellington -
- 31 - Miss Mahoney came - Wrote Mrs Shoberl
Dined at Lord Cosh's -

- 1^o Arranged the medals I had rec^d 73 Papers -
 - 2^o Finished the medals Mr Congre went to W. Hillwell
 - 3^o Ill - Mr Galt & his son called -
 - 5^o News from Miss Madras to Mr Howard.
 - 6^o Mr Galt called sent me a dozen of them.
 - 8^o Lady Denison called to bring me to Lady Morgan's
concluding conversation of the Rev^d Lady Coke.
 - 9^o Went to visit John who was looking up to Pease & Anderson
saw Mr. Galt - Mrs. W. G. - & went to see Pease.
 - 10^o Galt to Mrs. Wood - Miss Galt Miss Evans. Went to Anne Phillips
 - 11^o Galt to Lady Morgan with Packet. Miss Galt respecting Miss
Galt -
 - 12^o Miss Galt called -
 - 13^o Anne Phillips - wrote Mr. Galt -
 - 14^o Went to the Mountains with Mr. & Mrs. Phillips - saw the Misses Power
Genoves - Miss Mackenzie came with Miss Galt.
 - 16^o Wrote Mrs. Clarke. Lady Coke to Mary Barber.
 - 18^o Wrote Lady Galt - Mary J. Demer
 - 23^o Wrote Miss Galt & Whitehead
- The title
- 27^o Called on Lady Morgan & Mrs. Rogier
sat in at home. Went to Anne Phillips
 - 28^o Anne Phillips left home - saw Mrs. Macnamara
heard from Mr. Shoberl.
 - 29^o Heard from & wrote to James Jones. sent Lines
on the death of the Irish born to Mr. Martin
 - 30^o Wrote Lady Coke to Mr. Shoberl.

July -

- 1st Mrs Monmouth came out with me in a stage called on Miss Dale. Mrs Rogers & Malibron with lines.
- 2nd Wrote Louis Kates "The Flying Man".
- 3rd Went to the Martins to Mrs Brookes with E Roberts - met Mrs Wood Miss Hall. Mr Jones of the Strickland & -
- 4th Called on Jordan's left side - Plan - Bafet said call on Pely - In the evening the Fane Court's own sister to Mr Miss Fane Court who was miraculously cured.
- 5th Made the end of Mrs Wood's sale.
- 6th Miss Jones Mrs Farmer. Mr. Butler in the evening
- 7th Wrote Mrs Weston with Lennox & Gansel then remembered. Wrote Lady Lock Mrs Clark called
- 8th Dale with Malibron & thoughts on Emigration Wrote Mrs Rogers with Mrs Lewis's card.
- 9th Wrote Lady Rolle.
- 10th Mrs Hart's sale called for E Roberts - Introduced to D. Finlayson D. Stewart from Barbadoes.
- 11th Heard Maria Visconti - Heard from Mrs Dambois Lady Duncanson wrote Mrs Leigh of Mr. Jefferson. Heard Miss' own story of herself & Brother's death. sad. most sad.
- 12th Wrote to John with lines on Malibron & Mr Martin's Pictures Wrote to Lady Locke - Heard from Mr Lobb & Phoboul.
- 13th Sunday - Heard Mr. Anderson - Queen's Chaplain "For in such our hour as ye think not the Son of Man cometh."
- 14th Heard from Mrs Clark. Wrote to Mrs Wood with lines for Abbe - John called.

Wednesday July

- 19 Wrote E. Roberts with Robinson for Silke - Saw Mrs Gurd Wood & Miss Overhoney.
- 20 Wrote Mr Gillibrand Capt. Leard - Miss & Mrs Hewson Mrs Davis - Mr Talbot & Directions for Colth - Dined with Miss Dale - Spent the evening with Mrs Dixon - Miss Creeper came -
- 21 Wrote Sir H. Taylor & Mr Colburn with Miss Strickland
- 22 Wrote Miss Dale & Miss Dixon called.
- 23^d Wrote Mrs Clarke Mrs Sheridan - Mrs Robert & Whitaker.
- 24 H. - Wrote Mr. D. - kept of Leads.
- 25 Wrote Fanny Jones.
- 26 Heard from & wrote to Sir H. Taylor.
- 27^d Heard from Mrs Ross with Mr Winton to Robert - & Whitaker. Appointed to go to Mr. Murrable was too ill - Robert & Mrs Buxey came in the evening.
- 28^d Went to Mr Murrable at 12 o'clock - Wrote to Mrs Robert & Whitaker & Lady John Heard from Mary Jones - & Mrs Clark.
- 29 W. Webb - 15th for Seal at Church.
- 30 Went about Midall - Wrote to Lady John Heard from Sir J. Franklin & Sir H. Taylor.
- 31 Mrs Phillips came - Wrote Sir J. Franklin.

August 18th.

Wrote Sir G. Topley - Pres^d of the Office ^{John} Mr Cobb
& his Son called - upon which I finished my
Letters -

2. Wrote & finished two for Charles - in relation to Mr Cobb
& Son with the - in Mr. Marshall's & Mr. Clark -
his & Mr. Marshall's names.

3. Wrote Mr. Garrison with Clark - Mr. Clark
with Mr. Dade - Mr. Shoberl & Bentley - in England
heard from Bentley - Mr. Clark - of Mr. Shoberl -
Miss Dale called.

4. Wrote Miss Dale with - Miss Norton's - in
wrote to Mr. Clark -

5. Heard from Lady John wrote Mr. Cobb -

6. - - - - - Miss Young & Lady John -

7. Sunday - Heard Mr. Brock - His Text -

"In the Garden there was a sepulchre."

Mr. Cobb & Son after Church - Miss Dale to
take leave - after which an interview with
Sir J. Franklin - I wept my eyes almost

8. Went out to call on several persons -

Mr. business Mr. Shoberl & Mr. Clark -

9. Wrote Lady John - Mr. Shoberl & Bentley for Books -

10. The sailed for Van Diemen and Lord

11. Wrote to Mr. Cobb who had left London in the 10th -

12. Called on Mr. Parker - Sir J. Franklin - Bentley for
books. Miss Shingler & Lady Bradford.

September 26.

- 1 Wrote to Miss Jefferson - ill till 3rd
- 5 Heard from Charles - 2nd & dated Dec 25 & March 26 - also a letter from Mrs. Menarch. Made out for
- 6 answered Charles & Mrs. Menarch to go by Royal George - 10th Sept
- 8 Heard from & wrote Miss Jefferson -
- 9 Worked & prepared for going to Emma's Dale -
- 10 Miss Tully called - Lady Denigonsam took me out - wrote to Lady Lorn. Heard from Mr. Hooker -
- 11 Wrote to Mr. (John)
- 12 Prepared my clothes for the 15th
- 15 - Went to the Coach - mistle - a mistake or a forget of the Coachman's
- 16 - Came to Emma's Dale - all the Jeffersons met me -
- 17 Emphatic
- 18 Sunday - Wrote & wrote - not well - May God prosper & bless my new abode & prevent accident arising.
- 19 Wrote to Lady Lorn - Colburn Mr. Dungeon's key
- 20 Heard from Lady Lorn again - wrote Dungeon & Sarah Cornish with letters from Miss Murray about getting her children into the Church with Sarah Dungeon with Miss Jefferson went out - Will call Mr. Dungeon called on me.

- 21st (Wed) 1st volume of Boston South on the Civil War & in England - wrote to Mrs Adeline Parry
 Mrs Duff - Mrs Davis Miss Meyer Mrs Clarke
 called on Mrs Duff - good good my littlest P.
 Lindley by Capt. Dufford. Miss Jefferson - the
 Boston chronic Tea with me. Began the Waters.
- 22nd = Read - worked. Wrote to Charles - Mrs Bon Oak -
 Began copying the Swiss Missy in the evening
- 23rd = Mrs Jeff - as usual he goes to Winton. tomorrow
 therefore I shall send him - also
 to Mr Coburn. Heard from the South of England.
 Mrs Dufford spent the evening -
- 24th = Wrote Mr Howard of the "New Moon"
 walked by Casswell Park & Virginia Water.
 Lady Denison passed and carried to bed - her
 little boy took off his hat.
 Drank Tea with Mrs Dufford. Capt. Dufford
 came home - Mrs Jefferson went to Winton
 took my letter for Charles - directed to Mr Howard
 Mrs J - went - no night to Sir W. Taylor.
- 25th = Went with Capt. & Mrs Jefferson - to Virginia
 Water - walked nearly to Egham - thence down
 a lane near the Stables - thence round
 home - spent the evening with them very
 pleasantly -
- 26th = work -
- 27th = Miss Meyer - came -
- 28th = Capt. Dufford called we had a long

conversation on the time occupied on this
beath - In 93 - as he was going along a
lon part of London - Charles James Fox
harranguing the Mob from a Cart - a lady
thought he that you had not lived in times
when that sort of words would have taken you
to Tyburn - your proper place.

30th He went to London to dine with Mr
Rawlath & Mr Howard with their man -
He spent the evening with Mr Dwyer
the jiffsons - came home at ten

October — 36.

- 1st Oct^r Nothing post and on late the
5th — when I wrote to ~~David~~ by Post - Mrs. Piquet
sent 2 cards to ~~David~~
- 9th Miss Meyer heard from her Brother - and disappointed
to me - as I had hoped to be alone - and in con-
sequence of his letter - she remained - expecting to take
travels on from day to day till the 19th when
19 The Keffers came with Sparrow crutch - Sec with
us -
20 Miss Meyer kept me -
22 Will Davis came - spent the morning with me
walked home - This was on the Saturday -
On the Sunday I walked out - and on the Monday
I was ill - unnecessary worry about other
peoples affairs - parts which I had been
impressed "as the cause" -
30 Wrote to Lady Leake in answer to a very kind
letter of hers - and enclosed a few lines to Bessie
with one of Charles' letters -

1st I began to read the Desert-Flower - and
to call it Virginia Wicken - as the title
would be likely to take - For I had a copy in

5th I had completed 90 Pages - It is
It may be more advantageous to
me - that is - Most I may be included.

14th I rec^d a letter from Miss Meyer - which
I answered to go on the ~~14th~~ 5th - Lady Carter
Miss Mahoney - Mr Howard - Miss Meyer
and Miss Mrs Pengree - I wish to see you

5th In the evening not only Miss Jefferson
came

6th went to Church. I saw nothing as strange
but a man & woman from the woods - ^{not} I
be followers of "Jack" which is good - Who is the
You shall learn good? I turned my back
on the Sacrament - gained of course - in
It was more a case - of its being to be
Administered - of some of our people
stand - the distance too great to walk
Home at

7th - I rec^d from my dear Mr Francis
(Oct 21st - July 1850 - His letter -

- 6th
- 7th
- 8th
- 9th
- 10th
- 11th
- 12th
- 13th
- 14th
- 15th
- 16th
- 17th
- 18th
- 19th
- 20th
- 21st
- 22nd
- 23rd
- 24th
- 25th
- 26th
- 27th
- 28th
- 29th
- 30th

2. Two Letters towards George B. The
first is interesting. This is a routine, given faith-
fully, but daily.

Read Zolow - & other scraps - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1

3. Made trips to town to Lady L.

3d to the Ill -

7th called on Parker - & Mr. Howard - & a
great deal of other things at a club. Took a
letter for Charles - enclosing one for Mrs
and daughter - saw her on 10th - she is well -
very good also for Mrs. W.

10th Mrs. Frisch - called - the first time of our
seeing her - she comes from Ipswich.

7th called on Mrs. Clifford - & on Mrs. Lady
Parker - & on Mr. Spencer here.

10. Made out D - & wrote a long letter
to Mrs. Parker as usual.

11. Wrote to St. Peter's Church - died with
Mrs. Phillips.

12. Wrote to Mrs. Sandrober - & wrote
Mrs. O'Connell.

13. Expecting Parker all the day - he did not
come - Pa. would say nothing to any party
Mr. Co. as usual - saw her to day - took
a letter to Mrs. Phillips' daughter -

1. ...
2. ...
3. ...
4. ...
5. ...
6. ...
7. ...
8. ...
9. ...
10. ...
11. ...
12. ...
13. ...
14. ...
15. ...
16. ...
17. ...
18. ...
19. ...

103

My dear mother
I have just received your kind letter
of the 10th and was glad to hear
from you and to hear that you were
well. I am well at present and
hope these few lines will find you
the same. I have not much news
to write at present. I have been
very busy lately with my school
work and have not had time to
write as much as I would like to.
I hope to write again soon. I
am ever your affectionate son,
John Smith

The Lord is with me
 of His Holy Spirit
 to do the work of a
 merciful God in me
 as I have done in
 the past and brought
 of my former life
 these things - Oh
 how I pray - and
 God through His
 Spirit of my heart
 may be - especially
 through the Holy Spirit
 the joy of my heart
 Remember the
 will - I want
 see you in the
 heart of my
 heart - my

[Faint, illegible handwriting at the top of the page, possibly including a name and a date.]

3rd in

1st ...
2nd ...

6 = and when we went to the Hall - the
 a man - of goodly size - station -
 then - and then - as -
 and he said - the man was -
 of a - the man's -
 that of a - which -
 have - called -
 a - he - his
 knowledge - the -
 various - good -
 and - and call -
 man -

He said that the -
 his -
 of his -
 long -
 to -

He - and placing
 his hands on my head - he said -
 Very good friends of -
 that lady is a -
 Great -
 left in the -
 through the -

Strong desire for the enjoyment of that, but
an indelible mark of sense in the world and
stage of feeling for it.

Having self considered the propriety of some
actions difficult to name from it.

Anger quick if offended but soon over, and
not the least vindictive.

Very high sense of honor and justice
Great anxiety to be serviceable to others -
and desirous to be tried as well as
to be able.

Diffident - very much so - in strange
society, but very cheerful with friends.

Language - to speak and to be understood
quickly & easily attained.

Ten - Ladies can excel so well in grammar
Very fond of system & method. of things
neat and good - quick rather than greatly
colors.

great activity - would be missed by those
in a house, street, or neighborhood
where good people -

Misuse of calumny - too easy touch.

Writing - from the perspective -
- being a long of poetry - & of literature
In conversation plain facts - superior to state
Careful - distributing property - to keep within the
means - but not close.

Respect for religion but not fond of ritual
theory

Assurance of privilege or a necessity.

The game the act of this - I hope - intend
it - when you go on his all way have been
you would be in the order of time - it
has been of - the anchor and support
you through it.

A good spirit if just to you or yourself.

You look to the bright side of every thing
to neither make more difficult.

In further conversation on these remarks be
spoken more fully on my advice to be engaged
in an extensive way - to my reasoning
and on assistance - a duty - the meeting
the best of our time.

The first the child collected in the
country. It was in the month of August
radical of embryo - a ...
part by extension to ...
parts - each ...
presented or ... - Two of the first -
new ... had brought boxes to him
in both instances - without knowing who
they were - he told them to be careful, keep
a watch over them - for they were not
to be trusted - After giving his advice
as to what plan ... the best to ...
part of - he was told - They had both
...
...
...

Lady Byron had visited him, he told her
something was going on very wrong in
a certain part of the head, that great
care w^d be requisite in that particular
spot, to preserve her reason - He then told
her which parts of the head should be kept
cool at which warning, she acted accordingly

his students were allowed to attend the
Lecture on the subject of the ... and the
... to the ... with permission. etc.
by name.

Previous to this in ... you ...
down ... extracted ...
... ..
the

One person had been there for ...
... ..
... ..
of the

Mr.
... ..
... ..
... ..
... ..
... ..
... ..

The ... to the practical knowledge of the
science as that which will eventually
benefit mankind.
... ..
... ..
... ..
... ..

has changed with the present, cultivation
or neglect of the moral virtues - in proof
of which he showed various heads which
had so changed.

I intend to go again the first opportunity
therefore I shall not at present - detail
more of his conversations - but it was
most interesting.

3 A children's Party - at Anne's in the
evening whom I assisted to amuse
in the course of the time Miss Vague
& Miss Duns - so accompanied
by Mr. Hollis - It is a good music
and has a beautiful voice.

I felt it but endeavored to shake
it off - On the 2nd however - after my
return from Church at Westminster
Abbey - I was taken seriously ill - and

1. The same has been since the time
of your departure - I have indeed been
in bad humour for the last year - &
for some years since - watching some
and some people still so violent
the for the sake of peace and rest
on this day too - I have just heard and
read by some one coming to London
that Lord your and residing with the
the sickness - I can bear patiently but the
loss of the time & the is of moment and
every thing - indeed also seems delayed or
frustrated - but - all will soon pass -
then they complain - that they let us ad-
dressed as above?

24th - I have done nothing very particular
here this day - as my head was much
weakened from the complaint -
I have only written a few letters
to Mr. Hammond & Lydia - Lady Lash
Lady Douglas - & my I have not
to answer my father's letter

the other way of the road

20th from the City to the Spring Hill

29th with the party from the Spring Hill
to the day with me - ...

30th from the Spring Hill to the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...
... of the ...

31st from the ... to the ...
... of the ...

1.
2.

3. Heard from Lady (Coke) of her son
with the

4. Just as I was in the
heard from
yellings
his house.

5. I did not go out - heard from
Miss
... ..

6.
... ..

9.

10.
a small

11.
... ..

12.
... ..

13.
... ..

14.
... ..

15.
... ..
... ..

17th and from ...
Mrs Lane called.

18th Made to Puty Lake.

19 Sunday - engaged to be ...
of the fourth born to ...

20 Miss Mahoney & Miss ...

21 ... from ...

22 ... from ...

24th Took my time "Give me a heart & ..."
Melodist's Club - called on ...
who promised to see me the 27th -
Miss Mahoney & Miss Meyer ...
with me - Mrs Lane called - ...

25th Made out ...

26th ...
delicate ...
the 12th Edition - ...
beautiful - ...

27th ...

28th

Page 4 - 37

26th July 1830.

Time has flown although it has been
dreary with me - and I find myself in
the July of 30 - without having been able
to record any thing but disappointments
in my principal progress in life.

On this day I read Bulgarine's Le Sage
I do so with the intention of writing
and doing all in my power to increase
my income - Worthy to God - that I might
be able to work and assist my poor
"Brother Charles" - I begin now and
daily efforts - if success attended on my
own work - I should be satisfied - but it
does not - and the difficulties of Public
writing are almost insurmountable
Still I hope.

August.

5 The first Sunday in the month. I received the
sacrament from Dr. Dillon Charlotte Street
Chapel. In the evening I thought to call
on Mrs Howard - to ask her interest with
her Husband in favor of my Works in
3 Volumes I have just finished. I call
it "Virginia or the Royal Retreat near
Windsor" I went on the Sunday as he
generally goes out on that day, and I
thought I could thus be less secure his in-
terest through his Wife - ^{was in the habit of} ~~she~~ remaining
at home. - I had not called on her for nearly
a year, as I had been ill almost all the
winter. - When I would say inquiring for
her - the answer was - Mrs Howard -
Ma'am - She is no more - She died on
Jan^y last - Mr Howard is within with
some friends - and the door being
open I felt obliged to enter, which I
did - The Son & Daughter rec^d me kindly
said they were just going to Sea. I must
stay here to which I consented - Thinking
to secure his interest if possible - A Mr
& Mrs Parsons were also there. - He was

going into the country by the coach. Mr. Purnell
& young Mr. Howard went with him promising
to be back in ten minutes. by the time I
was ready - They were so, but in the
interim Mr. Howard had proposed to me
which offer I had declined of course - The
whole affair from first to last appearing
like a dream -

After this I could not expect much success
for my work - The M-S was returned
to me - a complete failure!!! and
as the Title was considered a good one,
a hint thrown out that it was possible
that other 3 volumes would be written to it
by Bentley's direction - It is a laborious
but a due must be found - patience
and perseverance the only remedies.

- 10 Mr Wedge and a friend of his, going to the
 Broomfield Land called upon me. I must
 prepare my Patent! A wonderful task
 God send.
- 11 Mrs Parsons Mr Howard's friend called
 upon me and took Tea - Perhaps ano-
 ther opening for my M. S. - but time
 will tell.
- 17 Went with Madame Pauline - bought
 out 40 £ the remainder of my Money
 in Stock - left Madame Pauline 20 £
 filled out Parker's job 6 Copies of my
 years at Sea - period 1-2-6
- 18 Brought Mr. Parsons called -
- 19 th - went to Royal Exchange and
 saw Mr. Parsons - he is 2 years
 of age - is a most industrious
 Lawyer.
- 22 wrote Mr Parsons - Mr Wedge
- 23 Long Lane - Mrs Parsons called on Lady
 Mordaunt
- 24 saw Fletcher about writing his life
 took Mrs Leigh and Mrs Parsons then from Mr
 Parsons.

Virginia. Water ready for Sale
3 Volumes -

Mr. Boushield - 1 Copy

Mr. Pratt - 1

22nd September met Mr. Milner at Lady
Bradford's who asked the title of my Book
wrote to her when it is out.

- 25 -- Wrote Lord Munster, Lordy Croke Mr^r Pardon & Mr^r Moran - furnished Mr^r Folliott, Kiassa and the Quakers - Towns decidedly crowded with it -
- 26 Rec^d a Letter from Lord Munster - went to Church - Westminster Abbey - found it closed went to St^s Margarets Church.
- 27
28 Mrs Moran called upon me - respecting Mrs Margaria - gave copy of Two Years Trav^l
- 29 Heard from Mr^r Parsons - & Lady Loken and both - wrote to Mr^r Moran - Mr^r Meyer - to Helchen - sent Byron's Letter - Mr^r Wedge drinks Tea with me. I gave him Two Years at Sea - ^{the} ~~copy~~ ^{copy} was covered by a Person who went out in the Warrstead - The game one a lamentable acct^s of the Savon River where he remained a year - He got amongst the Mountains - thence to the Cape of Good Hope - & so by degrees on home - He is to call on me again
- 30 Saw Staffed Horse - returning home
- 31 Put in to a scuffle & saw the Calve - The first time I was ever there

September

Recd "The last days of Aureliam" -
wrote to Lady Lett about Ingram -
called on Mrs Dingle

2nd Sunday - do not go to Church
as I do not feel well -

3 Not very well - Recd Mrs Tollope's Roman
of Vienna - the 3 volumes.

Consider it an entire failure. An
Austrian nobleman marries a young
English girl - is told of her parents
the marriage illegal gets her child, takes
her once out of the country, she sees the
wife never in any way acknowledged.
The marriage - She makes the vow, gets
her child and keeps it, but the old man
after being a prisoner twenty years -
escapes - and produces the marriage
certificate to the Prime, Sally Prime
Minister to the Emperor, Francis of
Austria - The Count Alton-Loring who has
caused all the mischief goes unpunished
is even invited to the Primes table, because
he is fond of good living and has no

Dinner ordered at home - and by the
same good & just Prince is advised to
make a little Tour whilst the mother
blows in - the old Nurse Wagner who
has suffered all - and does all - is
over again thought of - those who
imprisoned and sold her - are
forgotten - for the story ends
as soon for them - Poor Poor se-
& Augustine justice - O. rich -
I was a weak Prince. Miss
and a tale badly told by Mrs
Trollope -

4th called on Miss Jones not at home - I
was still languid & able to do little
Lombard etc - but read - till the

10th when Madame Constant's little girl
was taken in a fit - supposed to have
swallowed the claw of a Partridge - she
lingered till the Saturday when she died -

15 Poor little Therieke breathed her last -

16 I am unwell -

17 Returned to Mrs Pegg's unpunctured &
wounded my poor

During the 6 Weeks I was with Madame
Kendall at Belgrave (George Second
Mrs Scoble's Vienna & the Austrians 2
Celebrated Irish Romance of Vienna
3 Volumes — Zenobia Queen of the East
2 to close of Irish The last days of Aurelianus
2 — close of Irish. 1 Volume of Life of
Sir Walter Scott ^{narrative or the higher}
_{of the Marston by Duin}
3 Volumes — very clever & beautiful.

17 Returned to Mrs Conger & commenced
The Life of Wilberforce —
During my stay at Madame Kendal's
I saw Mrs Wedge twice wrote to Lady Frank
lin — & sent 2nd Edition of 2 Years at Sea.
Gave him also a copy — To be taken
out by his friend who met me at the
Government House at Chesham Town

18 19 & 20 Saw Miss Jones called backwards &
forwards. finally settled her accounts

21 Wrote to inquire for Mrs Dawson
22 Lady Coke at Bangley
23 found my tent to Dr. Shorter in the evening

24 — Wrote Lady Coke at Bangley. on the
22nd called on Lady Bradford met Mrs. Wilkes
who asked the title of my Book —

25 Read Madame Trafts and's Memoirs
26 Edited by Mr. Harve — not well done — but
27 the subject interesting & the Drawings of
Madame Trafts and when going to one in
1800 — according to the life had no name

27th Mrs Holm the Phonologist called on
me - gave me a Ticket for his lectures
for ~~the~~ ^{the} commencing next Tuesday
I gave him in return - a copy of "Two Years
at Sea -"

28th Called on Lady Bradford - met Mrs
Wolmer there - Queen Dorothea not
observed at her length - but her
height is similar in length for 40 years.
Heard from Lady Esch - called on
Miss Jones in the evening.

29th Sent Roberty for my Books & Papers
up to this day - gave him nothing
I wrote to Mrs Gardner by a Servant
of Miss Jones' going to see her friend.

October

301

- I was taken ill the first day of this month and continued to the whole week - an entire prostration of strength
- 6th Lady Suite and her Daughters called on me -
- 7th ~~Did not go to Church~~ ~~Trud~~ or ~~Therese~~ and a Partridge from Lord John - Wrote to Lord & Lady John - Sent the Birds to Mrs Moram -
- 8th Did not go to Church -
- 9th Wrote to John -

- 12th Journey my Mother called to thank me for writing to Lady John again - Wrote to my Bro^r by her -
- 13th Went to Mrs Moram - but not at home Bought my Gown - 4-15-6 - the cheapest thing I ever met with - Saw Mrs Price as usual before for Lady John - wrote a long letter respecting her - and in the hurry threw away a Sovereign for a Shilling to the Man who drove me - Every thing including this day -
- 14th Sunday - Did not go to Church - Was the whole day -

15th - Monday. - Had a Fly - and with little
Kantini game to Norwood -

15th - Walked to the New Cemetery which is
situated on rising & falling ground & is
said to contain a from 39 to 44 acres of
land. Two Churches are erecting on the
summit one from the service of the
Church of England and one for all
Tatarians - The Enclosure is made
partly by Wall and partly by Iron
railing having a light and pleasant
effect and is arranged with much
taste it is done by a Company -

Norwood is composed of seven Hills
as follows - Beulah - Weston - Biggin
Worbesey - Hilbert - Crown Hill.

17th - Walked to a Well which is frequented
by all the Poor for miles round as one
undisturbed to eruptions of all kinds
and called at Mrs Brooks school for
terms -

18th Walked to Toulce Hill - Heard from
Miss Meyer - & Dudy Boardman -

19th - Went to Toulce Hill in a Stage
spent the day with the Georgies - who
brought me home in a Fly with
Miss Dethlefs - their friend - Found an
Lark from Ludy Lane - My dear
brother Charles -

Charles Allen is dated 31 March 1830. and
altho' he is in any thing but affluence,
still it is the best letter I have rec^d. from
him for many years indeed I may say
it is the best letter I have rec^d. since he
has been in Van Dieman's Land - May
God Almighty - bless and be with him
and Oh! may his latter days be
happier than those that have passed
May some little balme of success be
poured into my cup - so that I may be
able to assist and thus prove to him how
willingly I would have given my all to his
Poor fellow! I wish his sorrows troubles -
and misfortunes have been greater than
any I have ever heard of - Mine times
have strange and various - but not!
Oh! mysterious - is life - !!!

Since the 1st I have written to Lady Bampf-
try Meyer - Mrs Pungell - Lady John - and
two letters for Lady John to Longman & one
to Mrs Price -

22nd Returned to Mr Piquet - found a letter from
Lady Bradford - Mr Price - called on Miss
Jones - whilst I was out and Mr Roberts
from Henry & his Captain Bonissac Larmon
Recd a Basket from Lady Leth with
1 Chickens & Potatoes - Wrote to & recd. con-
sents was from Mr Morison.

23rd Saw Mr Price write to Lady Leth
Wrote to Burrows - Took a two
years at Sea to Roberts.

24th Went to Madame La Roche -
Ingram - then went with Ingram
to Madame La Roche - was out
the dinner time -

25th Heard from Lady Leth, Briggs in
Town - called upon her - returned
home with Ingram &
settled all for her - returned
wrote to Lady Leth -

26 Mr Price called - I wrote to Lady Leth
a long letter about Ingram and for
Madame La Roche - Went to St Pauls
Place to Briggs - met Miss Jones
and to Lady Leth by her - went with
Briggs to Mr Palmer's residence. Finally
advised to St Pauls with Briggs - saw
Lady Leth - returned home - Madame La Roche
for the occasion was

- 27th - Went to St. Place's. Staid with Lord Lark
to see Housekeepers - Wrote to Mr. J. Deane
Lord Lark framed my letters - Returned
home washed ~~up~~ the remainder of the
day - Wrote to Lady Bradford in the
morning to say Lord Lark was in London
- 28th Went to Chantry Chapel heard a Mr. Sabine
he has a fine natural voice, if he is?
but wishes a good use of it - but he
sings most unpleasantly in reading &
Preaching - He doubtless means well, but
he is still judging in his Preaching
Walked on to the Georgi's - then returned home
Recd the Papers to see my poor eyes
alwas! refused me three glasses light
- 29th Burrows came I recd him Charles' Letter
Went to Lord Lark's - saw Mrs White engaged
as Housekeeper - Went home Wrote to
Mr. Fowmer - Lady Lark - & heard from
Mr. Brown an unsatisfactory letter -
- 30th Called on Lady Titch & Emma Roberts -
Met some who has written a History
of Robert E. Roberts - writing a Cookery
Book - in the evening Mr. Roger & Mr.
Garofolini. Poor Mr. Gasman died of
Mudicure Venetian expecting to be cured
- 31st A wet day - I was disappointed in
going out, did scarcely any thing
frank & exertion, and disarrangement
of my plans

November -

- 1 a wet day I could not go to Lady Bradford
saw Mr Grey - & thought of making a new
arrangement -
- 2nd Went out to get wet - wrote to Lady Catherine
of new arrangements - Went part of the
day to Lady Woodford's - came late & did
not write a letter in the evening -
- 3rd Mrs Galton called - Heard from & wrote
to Lady Woodford Catherine - called on Lady
Woodford but could not see her on
account of Lady Galton's death -
Went to Madame Peronne about
Ingram - Madame Peronne confirmed
all only from 2 to 2 -
- 4th a wet Sunday - and not being quite well did
not go to church - read & wrote Lady Thilley with
Robert's receipt for 2 - copies of Calverley & Mary
Lady Woodford with the list of books from Robert
& John with Charles' letter - we wrote Dr. Clarke
& Virginia - so many occurrences -
- 5 Heard from & answered Lady Catherine's letter - wrote
to the Chairwoman Charles about Ingram
sent Lady Woodford's letter - to Robert to
send to her -

- 6 sent John Charles' letters
 John came in the evening remained till 11
 of both Jargonne & Mrs. Clarke
 7 Went to Town - called on Mrs. Moore
 could not see him called on La Roche
 settled to go to Mrs. Gray - heard from
 10 - Heard from Lady Lisle - Lane Venetian
 wrote Miss Meyer or long letter
 John called with Charles' letters -
 9 wrote Miss Lally - Lady Lisle ^{sent the 10th} - Miss Meyer
 "Genshies, Queen of the East" to the
 last days of Caroline - book to Robert
 with George - sent the books
 to H. P. - called on Mrs. Moore - He is
 to see me on Saturday - Had a
 letter from Mrs. Parsons - called to make
 inquiry of Madame La Roche -
 10 saw Jargonne - corrected some chapters of Virginia
 Read Nicholas Nickobly - then went out
 called on Lady Woodford - heard the account
 of poor Lady John Russell's death - Her end
 was peace and without pain - 4 children
 left by the first wife and two by the second
 poor Mrs!
 In the evening Mrs. Garofolin came, I gave him
 the letters of books for Miss Meyer - wrote to
 Mrs. Moore -

10 Went to Mr Leigh's court not seen - returned called
in Pontine - wanted for Mr Mowbray at 4 O'Clock
he came - stood till five - no good effected by his
visit - merely Thope. he may benefit - poor old
Lord Byron's Serv^t

11th Went to Ebury Chapel heard Mr Johnson - a
beautiful sermon on the Text "Thy Right
ourself is Encumbering, and Thy Burden is the
Truth."

12 Called on Mr Leigh - Then went to St. J. for
for books - on my return met Mrs Roberts
& Mrs Lawrence - Thomas & Miss Latham
came home - wrote to Lady Carter & called
the letter to be forwarded to the Bishop
Read the first Volume of Oliver Twist -
copied Charles's letter for Mr Wedge

13 Wrote to Mr Wedge with Charles's letter, sent it
with copies to Mr Leigh for a friend - Went
to Lady Carter & enclosed a letter from Thomas -
wrote Mr Mowbray with letter for a friend

14 Got up tolerably well - began my writing
but obliged to go to bed from faintness
read the 3^d Volume of Oliver Twist

15th Called on Mrs Roberts - wrote on being below to Lady Carter -
wrote the remainder of the story - but far from

16 Arose tolerably well - having recovered of and
saw my dear Mother - who looked so beautiful
and affectionately embraced me - Recd. a
packet from Mr Wedge - with Jo's in
"The Reclaimed Family for the Poor."

You remember kind for publication - with
over the thoughts of my poor Mother (Charles)
and his sufferings - which Mr. Wedge cast
of himself forcibly recall.

17th A dreadful head-ache in the morning
Targem came I went with her to Hart's
and Mrs. Reade's to get a Chase - then
called on Lady Woodford - Lord John Russell
letter; with return to Parliament with
fresh vigour. Lord Devonshire with the
Lords in the House and Lord's are common
recreation with them previously. The Queen
having no Secretary - the attendance of her
first Minister necessary - a letter from
Mrs. Morison about Fletcher.

18 - Sunday - not did not go out -
went to Mr. Leigh enclosing Mr. Parsons
Mrs. Wedge - & Mrs. Morison's letter -
Lunch Home with a letter to Hamilton for
~~the~~ ^{the} ~~the~~ ^{the} Palace.

19 Read 2 Vols of Eliza or the Emperor's
Lion by the late Mr. Lambert Heard
from Hamilton ~~and~~ Heard from & wrote
to Lady Lettis -

20 Read the 3rd Volume - Very interesting
to the moral good - it may be full

happier - I wrote to my dear Brother (had
called on Lady Bradford - who begged me
to send her a copy of Edwin & Mary
and one of Reclaimed Family by
Lady Tuite - I had an interesting
conversation with her about poor
Charles.

21st Rose my wife - Mrs Perkins called on &
asked me to write her Life which I shall
do - She wishes to have it bound in
her children - I then went to Mrs Leigh
had luncheon with them - & returned
home Dashed &

22nd Rec^d 10 £ of my Re^lmas Quaker from
Lady G. for which I wrote & thanked
her - wrote also to Mary Barber - Put
up money for Lady Tuite 6/1/2 which
I shall send by T. Leitch. wrote an
explanatory letter about her 1000.

23rd - Went to Perkins relative to Colonial Gazette
then to Whitcomb - who ask being
then his Clerk gave me the one to
you & invention - Mrs Perkins brought
her life - I am disappointed in its
interest at present - but we shall
see

24th - Spacked up and came to Mrs Gage's
a long story occurred in town &
tired on Lady Trute & had early
Fletcher called - & brought me Books
from Lady Trute - 6 of "Edwin & Mary"
& 3 of "Edwin & Mary" -

25th Sunday did not go to Church -
In the Afternoon Emma Roberts
called upon me - a visit of nearly
two hours. In the evening wrote
Mr. Morson first by Fletcher -
began my Parish Narrative -

26 Put a letter to Mr. Morson by Mr
Fletcher - gave him a copy of Ten
years at Sea - Wrote a long letter
to Whitaker - heard from Valentine -
went to Roberts about Books -
Arranged Papers -

27 wrote to Whitaker - Mr. Yates - &
Lady Lush

28th wrote Lady Rolle on John's acct for
Miss Samuel the Blue Coat School -
Jorgan came to work - therefore I
arranged my letters - heard from Miss Sammer

29 Stupid - worked only - heard from Miss Sammer
30 Wrote Miss Sammer Miss Evans heard from Mr. West
Eddy with old Miss Dwyer sent down to Mrs. West

December.

The last month of the year Oh! That
Tonight prosper and be blessed in my
undertaking even in this short period
Remaining period of the year - but I
have so well learned that "Redemption
not what to wish - that to suffer
is our portion - at least - it has
been mine - that - I can only bow
and say - O Lord! forget me not!

1st - Went out early to the Theatre with one
called at Dorset Square in Miss Exton's
then on Lady, quite had a long con-
versation - introduced to Hunt, Salamis.
got very out coming home - arranged
my clothes & read for the evening.
Mr. Dungeon called on me whilst
I was out -

2nd - Sunday - A wet day could not go to
Church in the evening Mr. Murchett and

3rd - Little Pembroke called - He took one of my
2nd Edition of "Two Years at Sea."

4th - Went early to Whitehall and settled my
account of "Hiverstein" - I was not pleased
with Mr. Tomkins - and intended to tell him
so - Went to Park Street with wife had from
him for to-morrow - On my return home

~~next~~ Mr Wedge and his niece called upon
me - I went from Charles' Court to
which with the business I had had
to transact in the morning
quite upset my feelings - May
God yet bless my endeavours?
~~In the~~ Miss Hole called upon me
In the evening I went to Fanny's
Ingram - went with me.

4th Miss Evans called - I wrote to Lady
Leah - Mr. Murch called upon
which I began Mr. Wedge's beau-
tiful account of Leeds Opening.

5th Finished Mr. Wedge's account &
sent it off to Parker by 10^o clock
600 hundred lines -

6th Not very well - wrote to Lady Hungen
with cards for Mary Flint - Deaf &
Dumb - and Lady Leah for Fletcher
also to Lady Suite - with many
papers for Fletcher to get him the
Collectorship of the Free Hospital

7th He but wrote 50 papers for Fletcher

2^d Fildes - I wrote names as letters to Mrs
Leigh - Heard from & wrote to Lady & other
Mrs Muscott called paid me for 2 years
at Sea Mrs Purbin - her book -
Mrs Georgi - came Heard from Miss Green,
& Miss Meyer.

9th - Sunday not well enough to go to Church
walked afternoon & called on Miss Hale
in the evening prepared Fildes's letters

10th - Heard from & wrote to Lady Leake -
called on Mrs Anne Lambini & asked
about interest for Blue Coat School
Proberts - respecting Togg - Paid 1-3 for
groceries for Miss Meyer - Telegram came
gone for a letter from Marston
Fildes came - gave him his forday
letters directed - also wrote & sent
book to Mr Rowlett - wrote Miss
Hale with words for poor little blind
Deaf & Dumb Institution -
Mrs Leigh & her daughter kindly called upon me

11th - Went to Togg about books - Mrs Parker's
Mrs Muscott called & paid me for 2 years
of 2 years at Sea - I then walked for
Lives to other Commissioners - called on John
at War. Office with Duty Rolls taken up,
in the morning.

12th - Wrote the whole day - one solitary
letter - a trial of patience &
effort of perseverance. Went to
Maidame Pambini in the evening
for Bony first Perfumes - supposed
to be dying - Poor Child! Happy
indeed should it please God to take it

13th - Sent the letter to Whitaker - called on
Lady Bradford who was ill - then
called to see Maidame Pambini, all
taken - then to Thring's bridge about
Shoals - tried - also ~~wrote~~ heard from
Lady Dunganore & Miss Meyer -
and or? then letters & wrote to Lady J. M.
Had an answer from Whitaker -

14 - Wrote again to Whitaker in reply -
walked to Lady Trilke & home again
then Enquest & Pambini -
Mrs Fitzgerald called - & a letter
Lord from Mrs Ward - worked &
wrote in the evening.

15th - Wrote to Mrs Fitzgerald - Miss Evans
sent to Whitaker for Books - Made
Enquest & Lady Bradford for proxies
for poor Alice Flint.

16 Wrote to Pelagrine Chapel. Heard a most beau-
tiful Sermon from an Mr Morgan - One of
the best deliverers and Preachers I ever heard
for our extemporaneous one. The Text
"Now if any man have not the Spirit of
Christ - he is none of his." Mr Morgan
has studied well - His Doctrine - good -
his reading at Times beautiful - and
his delivery to my ears - all but perfect.
The Service did me good.

Miss Hale called upon me - I wrote to
Mrs Murrell with little Book of Poems.

17 Heard from & wrote Lady Corn -
Madame de Roche - & from little
Silent - Heard from Lady Bradford
wrote to Colburn - & Lady Trist
about Boston. A Letter to Mr Wedge
enclosing a Copy of Charles' - In the

18 Evening met Mrs Murrell about Blue
Coat School.

19 Wrote Lord Corn with Mr Wedge's letter
wrote John about Blue Coat School.
Walked to Town - Mrs Wedge met
Miss Maccloud - who offered to take me
to Mrs Wedge's Party the 31st. A Lecture on
Heard from Mrs Wedge on a fine Head
of a Barbadian - a Head worth a
Manor. A head ^{being} ^{wholly} I think I shall be able

to get some knowledge of Phonology.
Returned home - home. Mrs. Invercreech & the
Booth of Poems - much pleased - heard
from Lady John in my absence.

Mrs. Wood's rec't of Lord Brougham's
heard most pleasing - amusing
interesting - but I hurried away on
account of my long walk home - his
language - like the Falls of Niagara
seemed to bear down all before it
Mrs. Wood's comparisons.

19 Heard from Lady John of the marriage
of her daughter - Mrs. Fitz-gerald
called upon me about Madame de
Rochefort - Lady John called with Bridget
Laine & Cards Mrs. Invercreech called -

20 Mrs. Gervolin in the evening - sent
the ~~Book to Venetian~~ ^{consisting}
I heard from & wrote Lady John -
wrote Mrs. Gervolin & Miss Meyer -
wrote Mrs. Leigh about Tolstoy
called on Mrs. Fitz-gerald who was out
called on Emma Roberts - pleasant
evening home - Miss Cole - we went to
Venetian's - evening home - wrote Parker
about "Tales from the East" translation
of - wrote Corvalho about "Lindensystem"

21 - A dark dull day I was far from well.

Called on Mrs Baylis. She came to me in the evening I heard her sad story -

22nd - Mr Garofolini brought Madame Tubre who remained the whole morning -
Ingrum went to Mrs Walker. I wrote to Father about french of Italian Translation of "Two years at Sea" wrote to Mrs Fitz-Gerald - Mrs Rowlett - Lady Loch wrote & sent me a Phœnix which I sent to poor

23rd - A wet Sunday - I did not go out - ^{heard from} Mrs Tanner called upon me - I wrote the whole day - Mrs P's story - quite Religious therefore - !!
Mrs Tanner brought me the beautiful Epitaph on his wife -

12 of Poems at	_____	_____	1/6
1 Linsenstein	_____	_____	12
1 Two years at Sea	_____	_____	5
6 Reclaimed Family	_____	_____	2/6
2 Edwin & Mary	_____	_____	3/6

24th - a wet day - Mr Garofolini John called I heard from Lady Sikes - & wrote to her

25th - I went to Church - Heard Dr Tharp a good sermon - for him on "Behold! bring you tidings of great joy, which shall be to all

- people. I came home dined at Sir G. Tuile's
 Grant & Lambert Salomnis. Walked home at day
- 26th Burrows & his Wife & my three Nephews
 called - Then Madame Fontaine about Targum
 then Mrs Fitz-gerald - who staid with
 me till five o'clock.
- 27th Targum came I wrote and sent her for
 Miss Evans - also 1 "Two Years at Sea" &
 "Remerstem" to read to Lady Tuile - then
 Mrs & Mr Rowlett - came - then Miss
 Evans - then Mrs Palmer - I wrote
 to Mrs Fitz-gerald to appoint Saturday
 morning at 11 o'clock. Received a dozen
 of Port Wine from Lady Dungeness
 wrote & thanked her, and wrote Lady
 Lethe about Targum -
- 28th Targum came went to London for Plan
 I wrote to Lady Lethe - Emma Roberts &
 Mrs Fitz-gerald with cards for Flint
- 29th not very
- 30th well
- 31st Monk & Mrs Wood's being the last night of
 the year - Miss Moreland got married &
 took & brought me home - I sent
 Salomnis to take me to Supper with his
 beautiful Lambert - I had a very
 pleasant evening - but a week of
 weakness & ill health followed -

1839

Another year has opened - upon me -
O God! for what am I spared? For sorrow
sickness - and - cheerful joys?
None more mine than a few days at
a time - and then - ill - many -
and with a broken spirit - I struggle
to pursue a tract, in which success
I might still certain if I had but
fair play - but - disappointment
appears to be my portion in all my
undertakings - and why? - Not to wear
from the word - for God Thunders
my heart was early given to Him
and ^{to} Thee? Wrought appeared to me
worth possession but the power of
doing good - and that has been
denied me - though I care not
for trouble - nor for exertion
to obtain that power - Beyond that
the beautiful they and the Heavenly
Regions seemed to be all that I
longed for - Wherefore then O God
that these wonders are thine?
Wherefore has my spirit yearned
in vain, and left below to sorrow and
disappointment?

1st 1/2^o Did nothing but write a few
letters - confined to my room -
Jan^y - Burrows & Mr Burrows spent
one evening with me - and we
went over my poor Brother's (hard
misfortunes together - and it seemed
to do me good to have someone
to feel for him -

10 I went out for a little - had
a kind letter from Mr Leigh -
one from Lady Tulse - Longman
came to Madame Courtin's.

9 - Called on the Jones' & Courtin
about money.

10th called on Miss Cameron - Mr Tuley -
Emma Roberts conversed about
from Mrs Bradburn - Miss Evans
in Dutch Square - then home -

11 At home - Mr Moreau called

12 called on Lady Bradford - Lady
Cantwright then - very tired she ^{will}

13th Sunday - I did not go out
Read over some of Lady Tulse's
I looked at my own thoughts
God - my heart a little stronger
how to do more to overcome -

- 14 An invitation from Lady Tulse for Wed-
nesday or Saturday - fixed upon the
latter -
- 15 Tuesday - Sat waiting in disappointment for
a carriage I had ordered - did not arrive
till 3 - to call upon Colborne - Had a
pleasant interview with him - then
went on to Mrs Wood's house so late
could not stay - sent to Miss Adams &
Lady Tulse with the ^{encomiums} ~~encomiums~~ ^{Book}
- 16 Wednesday - Mrs Borrowers called upon me,
after which I went to Pall. Made for
Parker for Miss Meyer - met Mrs Leigh
& her daughter who invited me home
with them - went & gaped - returned
home tired - Henry my nephew called
in the evening -
- 17 Thursday - Poor Boyles called I wrote to Mrs
Lam for him - I then arranged books - Mrs
Leigh & her daughter called - Read Charles
Boyles' Book - read first volume -
I like it much - Lina's exchange
- 18 Friday - Borrowers called with two of
my nephews Charles & Alfred - Read
the 2 volumes of Lina's Exchange - They
are beautiful - but decidedly Mr James'
- 19 Heard from & wrote Lady Let - wrote Miss
Meyer Miss Adams - Lady Borrowers
went to Lady Tulse with Mr. Lane
there -

Sunday - Rose with the intention of going to
Lunch - Miss Evans called and pre-
sented all my plans - the Evening
not - I could not go -

Monday - A wet day entirely but I felt
21 well - I read and wrote - Read
the first Volume of Mrs Frothingham
"Wisdom Barnaby" - I was quiet
and comfortable in myself - Did not
get tired -

22nd - Went out - because I felt too much
to do any thing - had a walk in
Miss Hole - which answered for calling
upon her - called on Robert's Mother
Katherine - returned home found &
read the 2nd Volume of Wisdom Barnaby

Tuesday - Again went out - called on Lady Bradford
bought my dogs - my hair cut - in
short - did every thing I could to amuse
myself - returned home - Mr Murray
called - but my fatigue - extreme
God - knows - and only - how
must end -

Wednesday - Resolved to read, write, work and to
endeavour to get rid of this
feeling of extreme exhaustion &

fatigue - I took all the morning
Sunday - and was better - Read the
3^d Volume of "Widow Warraby" - It
is a clown but so really a worldly
wasm - that - altho' I was
amused - Still - I was not benefited

~~Sunday~~ Mr. Garofolini called - I wrote to Mrs
Fitzgerald by him & sent the 10th -
subscribed - Mrs. Perkins called - I gave
her 3 of my new Trilby Books - on the
Roman Catholic Religion -

Sunday - Rose Lake - Heard from & wrote
to Mrs. Gray about Congress - Heard
from & wrote Mrs. Meredith. Wrote to
Mrs. Marchand - Mrs. Loggare on the
death of her sister Mrs. Friend - Mr.
Latham - Miss Waring called to better
leave -

Saturday - Heard a Packet from Miss
Meyer - Heard from Mr. Dodge - & wrote
Mrs. Ledy (who had Ledy's of thanks
for poor little Tink & wrote to Ledy
Dance her children being the mesaled -
Poor Mrs. Doreau died at twenty
minutes past four o'clock.

~~Sunday~~ 27th Mrs. Marchand called upon me in the evening
I did not go to Church - Mrs. Shaw
called - I sent this Packet from Miss
Meyer to Mrs. Garofolini - Miss Giesbrecht
called - & Mrs. Reckless -

Monday - Wrote Lady Calk to Lady Dungenham
about Miss Gieswiler terms for
German Lessons - Mrs Zarofochini in
the evening -

Tuesday Wrote to Miss Meyer - Mrs Barchard
called - sent me 1/2 dozen of Wine -
took cream - Mrs Morcott called -

Wednesday Wrote to Mrs Palmer with Books
Wrote Letters to Comdessa Salomas
Lady Suite - Wrote Letters of Likes
for J. Lecher -

Thursday - Heard from & wrote to Lady Calk
Lady Dungenham wrote Mrs Parsons
about Lesson Maryyott. Sent Card
for the St Annis Society Schools
for £ - Meddler Gentle Post
"Lines Exchange to Hamilton Place

Friday 1st Feb^{ry}

Saturday - Burrows come to Town and
spent great part of the morning
with me - Miss Hole called. Poor
Mrs Pengue was buried.

Sunday - Mr Lloyd not go to Church -
I wrote - Mrs Sherr called -

Monday - Faint.

Wrote Mr Cobb - Mr. Thackeray.
Tuesday - Miss Cameron spent the day with an
Miss Mansfield called -

Wednesday -

24th - I have failed to write down as I
ought this month - I have been
employed in a succession of letters
and other writings - vexed and dis-
appointed still about my Book -
I heard from my B^r Charles dated
September wrote to him against the
Mr. Barrett -

March - I went over Lady Tulse

Mr. L. L. - On Forgiveness and
a novel -

Wrote to Parkin with his Pamphlet
on the Roman Catholic Religion
which he returned - sent it
to Mr. Bennett.

Sent to the New Monthly
The Sky and the Ground

The Orphan's call answered

The Sweep -
sent her Remembrance to Mr. Bennett

March (called on Lady Bedford
heard the coat of Lady Flora
Hastings - "It seems to my
feelings something like retributive
justice - knowing as I do how
uncharitably my friends believe
reports of others whom they ought
not to have done so -

19 Mrs & Miss Leigh called
Mrs Macnamara with her two
children - who had been wrecked four
years in the Torres Straits!

Mrs Lane & Miss Grant called -

20 Wrote Lady Lash - Mrs Johnson
Mrs Gardner - Mrs Wheatcroft
Miss Ferris her daughter with
Yashee - a Lady in Chester Street
with her children -

22 John called -

23 Wrote Mrs. Cooper -

24 Did not go to Church for long

25 Wrote -

26 ~~Wrote~~ Received from Miss Meyer Miss Pelly

More Misses (w/ig) - (w/ig) - (w/ig) -
on 8 of Suite (Dorchester) -

April

Dear Lady Loke came to Town

- 12th - I went to spend the evening with her -
10th - Dined with Lord Loke
17 Lady Trilce Parley - met the Howard
Mr Darrials - & Mr the Barrister
21 Heard Mr Johnson at Dr Dillins
Chapel One of the best Preachers
I ever heard - Dined with Lady
Loke afterwards -
22nd - Miss Miss Meyer -

The beginning of the month
but continued to dine at Lord Esch's
the 10th after which very ill -
10 wrote Miss Meyer - Mr Amley David
called on Lady Morgan -

12th Went to Dr Billew's Chapel and heard
a Mr Johnson - The second time
Miss and Maria all out or Read
and out of the order - This Text
Jesus in beholding the City of Jerusalem
wept over it saying If thou hadst
known even thou & the things
which belong unto thy peace - but
now are they hid from thine eyes -

14th Dined at Lord Esch's -

15 Called on Mrs Leigh heard from
Lady Morgan

17th Read the 1st Volume of Chevelley
on the manner of Honor - The first
part I thought flippant - but it
improved - Read also Richieu -
I was disappointed - wrote for
poor Mr Penrice to the Poor House

Vestry - wrote Lady (who heard from
of wrote Lady Trill - to Dr. Threlkeld

24th - Worram - heard from my dear Brother Charles - kept you
I don't - had no power over my feelings.

20 - A poor Worram came to me in the morning
was able to relieve his distress - and with
influence much. - Felt grateful lines to have
the power - butling as it might be - began
to recover from my acceptance - surely there
is no end to the mischief of man's
inability - How long Oh God. shall we
be tried be in - I kept myself quite
quiet and some friends calling upon
me cheered my spirits - Mrs Salmon
of her Daughter Mrs Orr - showed her
was seen for 4 years - Dear Mary Jane
and Mary Jennings the father brought
me a pretty Draft and a present. ^{rather a costly}

29 - I spent the day with Lady Dr - previously
in a private room - and she went to leave
on a little Town - for some months the following
day -

31 - I went to Lady John - called on Mrs. Powell
residing from Mrs. Clavin - a very plea-
sant visit -

1st - This month's court ended the "Gospel
congratulation" - being the blessed
in its performance and in its
propagation -

June 29.

1 This day I was to have spent with my family
but was perfectly unable. I heard from
Mr. & Mrs. [unclear] in the evening - heard
from Lady [unclear] - finished Mr. P. [unclear]
heard from Mr. Wood - invitation for
a party [unclear] - heard from
Robert's giving an account of his
wonderful journey to Paradise through
Egypt & home -

The high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land.

Written in London the 15th Feb^r 1799
The day on which the remains of the
Lady of Lovat the strings were
was conveyed to their final home in
Scotland.

~~The high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land~~

There is a sound from a distance of sorrow and grief
A sound of a bursting heart - seeking relief.
Tho' many the mourners, as another is chief
For the high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land

There is a sound as of voices when heard from earth
The sound as of numbers when bursting along
And their sorrow seems mingled with something of joy
To the high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land

They bear her - their love and their power to shed
The long home of darkness! where all flesh must go
When the silence of midnight looks down their soul
To the high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land

The fought-like her Father for honor and fame
The fought for the prize of our country's name
The fought and she conquer'd, when death took his
The high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land

She died - in the cause of a Maiden's fair fame
She died - like a Chastity who overbore shame
She died - and bright glory recorded her name
The high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land

And tho' the ~~world~~ ⁶
Thou weep not for her! for she is at rest
Her soul a ^{peace} "jewel" - "Linn" her crest
And now she rejoices in realms of the blest
The high-minded maiden of Scotia's proud Land

For tho' no mortal eye could see,
Nor mortal ear could hear
Bright Spirits hover'd o'er her bed, (ush
And ~~to~~ ^{lead} her ^{from} ~~not~~ ^{no} to fear.

They whisper'd of their presence
And of their truth and ^{dearly} love
And that they came to bear her thence
To Courts of bliss above.

She told her of "The Spirit
The Great and Mighty One
The God Almighty - Comforter
And Everliving Son -

And then as they "best" ¹⁰ her
To ~~catch~~ ^{catch} her fleeting breath
They ~~spoke~~ ^{shook} of Jesus at her staff
Through the shadowy vale of death -

"The Spirit shook off its burden of care
and sprang upward to breathe its own ^{air}
And myriads of Angels awaited it there

The high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land
Thou weep not for her ¹¹ ^{anguish} ^{is} ^{over}
And she ^{is} ⁱⁿ ^{pure} ^{happiness} ^{where}
And ^{is} ⁱⁿ ^{pure} ^{happiness} ^{where}
The high-minded Maiden of Scotia's proud Land.

